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PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF PIONEER INVESTCORP 
LIMITED will be held, on Wednesday, 29th  September, 2021 at 04.30 P.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other 
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

 1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 
and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the audited consolidated financial statement 
of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and the report of Auditors thereon and in this regard, to 
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

 (a) The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 including 
audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that 
date and the Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon;

 (b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 
including audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 
on that date.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

2.  To appoint Mr. Shailesh Pravin Dalal (Din: 03187574) as Independent Non-Executive Director.

      To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 160, Schedule IV and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable rules, if any, (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) 
thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and subject to the provisions of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, and basis the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the 
Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Shailesh Pravin Dalal (Din: 03187574), who was appointed as an Additional 
Director (Independent non-executive) pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the 
Act to hold Office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a 
notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act, proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby 
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company for a period of five (5) consecutive years from 
the date of his appointment  by the Board, not liable to retire by rotation.”

3.   To appoint Mr. Tushya Deepak Jatia (DIN 02228722) as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 160 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 
and other applicable rules, if any, (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, and basis the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of 
the Company, Mr. Tushya Deepak Jatia (DIN 02228722), who was appointed as an Additional Director ( Non-
Independent non-executive) pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the Act to 
hold Office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of her the Company has received a notice in 
writing under Section 160 of the Act, proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed 
as an Non-Independent non-executive Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.”
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4.   To authorise Board of Directors for issuance and allotment of Secured or Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures (“NCD's”) aggregating up to Rs.300 Crores on private placement basis in such tranches on such terms 
and conditions to be decided by the Board of Directors.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), and the rules made thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
And Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended, the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, 
including any statutory modifications or amendments thereto or re-enactments or substitutions made thereof for the 
time being in force, the rules, regulations, guidelines, notifications, clarifications and circulars, if any, prescribed by 
the Government of India, Reserve Bank of India, SEBI and/ or any other regulatory authority, whether in India or 
abroad, and in accordance with the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the Company and 
subject to such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary from any regulatory authority 
and subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by such regulatory authority while granting such approvals, 
consents, permissions and sanctions, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee or authorised 
person(s) which the Board has constituted or appointed to exercise its powers, as the case may be, including the 
powers, conferred by this Resolution), to make offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe for a Secured or Unsecured 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures in one or more series, denominated in Indian rupees including but not 
limited to subordinated debentures, bonds, and/or other debt securities, etc. (“NCD's”), on a private placement 
basis, in one or more tranches, during the period of one year from the date of passing of Special resolution 
aggregating up to Rs.300 crores (rupees three hundred crores only), on such terms and conditions as the Board of 
Directors of the Company may, from time to time, determine and consider proper and in the best interest of the 
Company;

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board/Committee, as the case 
may be, be and is hereby authorized to determine and consider terms that are proper and most beneficial to the 
Company including inter-alia, without limitation, the terms of issue including the class of investors to whom the 
NCDs are to be issued, time, securities to be offered, the number of NCDs, tranches, issue price, tenor, interest rate, 
premium/ discount, utilization of the issue proceeds, etc. and to do all such acts and things and deal with all such 
matters and also to take all such steps as may be necessary and to sign and execute any deeds/ documents/ 
undertakings/ agreements/ papers/ writings, as may be required in this regard and matters connected therewith or 
incidental thereto.”

Registered Office : 
1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman Point, 
Mumbai – 400 021.
Date: 13th August, 2021.
Place:  Mumbai.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Pioneer Investcorp Limited

Amit Chandra
Company secretary
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IMPORTANT NOTES:

1. In view of the prevailing COVID-19 pandemic situation, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rules framed thereunder read with Circular dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, 
May 5 2020, and January 13, 2021 respectively, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”) and the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Regulations”) read with SEBI 
Circular dated May 12, 2020 and January 15, 2021, the MCA and SEBI respectively, has permitted convening the 
Annual General Meeting (“AGM” / “Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the members at a common venue. In accordance with the MCA 
Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the AGM of the Company 
is being held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

2. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting system. 
Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by using 
the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login where the 
EVSN of Company will be displayed.

3. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the AGM is 
annexed hereto. 

4. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a 
poll instead of himself/itself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held 
through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. 
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the 
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.

5. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto.

6. Details of Directors seeking appointment at this Meeting are provided in the “A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) 
of the Act” to the Notice.

7. DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE:

 In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020 and January 15, 2021, Notice of the AGM 
along with the Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories. All Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 
2020-21 will also be available on the Company's website www.pinc.co.in, website of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE 
Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, Satellite Corporate 
Services Private Limited at https://www.satellitecorporate.com.

8. For receiving all communication (including Annual Report) from the Company electronically:

 (a) Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered / updated their email address with the 
Company are requested to register / update the same by writing to the Company with details of folio number 
and attaching a self-attested copy of PAN card at investor.relations@pinc.co.in or to Satellite at 
service@satellitecorporate.com or scs_pl@yahoo.co.in

 (b) Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update their email addresses with 
the relevant Depository Participant.

9. Pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, representatives of Corporate Members may be appointed for the purpose of voting 
through Remote e-voting or for participation and voting in the AGM to be conducted through VC / OAVM. Corporate 
Members intending to attend the AGM through their authorised representatives are requested to send a Certified True 
Copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney, (PDF / JPG Format), authorizing its representative to attend and 
vote on their behalf at the AGM. The said Resolution/Authorisation shall be sent to the Company by e-mail through its 
registered e-mail address at investor.relations@pinc.co.in with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

10. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience 
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11. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting. 

12. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

13. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their requisition advance atleast 6 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak 
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 6 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied by 
the company suitably by email. 

14. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting. 

15. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available electronically for inspection without any fee by the 
members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such 
documents can send an email to investor.relations@pinc.co.in

16. Members seeking any information with regard to accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to 
write to the Company on or before Tuesday, 21st September, 2021 through email on investor.relations@pinc.co.in. 
The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

17. Under Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 (205A of the Companies Act, 1956) the amount of dividend remaining 
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the due date is required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), constituted by the Central Government. Shares on which dividend remains 
unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be transferred to the IEPF as per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the applicable rules.

 The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial years 2011-12, from time to 
time, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) established by the Central Government. Details of 
dividends so far transferred to the IEPF Authority are available on the website of IEPF Authority and the same can be 
accessed through the website: www.iepf.gov.in.

 Further Shares on which dividend remains unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be transferred to the IEPF as 
per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable rules.

 Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed dividends transferred to IEPF Authority can be claimed back 
from the IEPF Authority.

18. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and their shareholding and Register of Contract or 
Arrangements in which Directors are interested are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 
during business hours between 11.00 AM to 3.00 PM. except on Saturdays and holidays.

19. With a view to using natural resources responsibly, Company request members who are holding Shares in demat to 
update their email address with their depository participant and those who are holding shares in physical from to 
update their email address to Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA).

20. Non-resident Indian Members are requested to inform about the following to the Company or its RTA or the 
concerned DP as the case may be, immediately:

 a. the change in the residential status and

 b. the  particulars  of  the  NRE  Account  with  a  Bank  in  India with complete name, branch, account type, 
account number and address of the bank with pin code, if not furnished earlier.

21. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore,  
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  requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 
Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent (RTA and submit the KYC form along with the supporting documents to avoid any further inconvenience. KYC 
form can be downloaded from following link.        

 http://www.satellitecorporate.com/KYC%20form%20&%20Affidavit.pdf

22. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the 
Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are 
registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will also 
be available in downloaded form on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in, websites of the Stock Exchange, i.e., 
BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent, Satellite 
Corporate Services Private Limited at https://www.satellitecorporate.com.

23. Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated that securities of listed companies can be 
transferred only in dematerialised form w.e.f. April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the Company / Satellite have stopped 
accepting any fresh lodgement of transfer of shares in physical form. Members holding shares in physical form are 
advised to avail of the facility of dematerialisation.

 The term 'Members' has been used to denote Shareholders of Pioneer Investcorp Limited. 

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING:

24. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Company is providing to its members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed 
to be passed at AGM by electronic means (“e-voting”). Members may cast their votes remotely, using an electronic 
voting system on the dates mentioned herein below (“remote e-voting – evoting from a place other than value of e-
voting'') and E-voting during AGM, to its Members in respect of the businesses to be transacted at the AGM.

 For this purpose, necessary arrangements have been made by the Company with CDSL to facilitate Remote e-voting 
and E-voting during AGM. The instructions for the process to be followed for Remote e-voting and E-voting during 
AGM are forming part of this Notice. 

 (i) The voting period begins on Sunday 26th September, 2021 at 09.00 AM IST and ends on Tuesday, 28th 
September, 2021 at 05.00 PM IST .During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021 may cast 
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a 
resolution is cast by the Member, he shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. The voting rights of 
Members (for voting through remote e-voting before the AGM and e-voting during the AGM) shall be in proportion 
to their shares held in the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, 22nd 
September, 2021.

 (ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 
venue. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

 1.  The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-
voting. 

 2.  Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on 
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 3.  If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting. 
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Login Method

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login 
to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user 
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL /KARVY 
/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' 
website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED
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 4.  Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not 
be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM

I.   LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 
SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE

  Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on “e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-Voting process has been enabled to all the individual demat account 
holders, by way of single login credential, through their demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order 
to increase the efficiency of the voting process. Individual demat account holders would be able to cast their 
vote without having to register again with the e-Voting service provider (ESP) thereby not only facilitating 
seamless authentication but also ease and convenience of participating in e-Voting process. 

  Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs in order to access e-Voting 
facility.

  Pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for shareholders 
holding securities in Demat mode with CDSL / National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) is given below:

Type of shareholders

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

2) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:  
URL:https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS' 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will
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Login MethodType of shareholders

   be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
“Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat  mode)  log in 
through their Depository 
Participants

   You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you 
click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.

Helpdesk detailsLogin type

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 
and 1800 22 44 30  

    Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Important note: 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

  Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL.

II.   LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 
SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE 

 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding in 
Demat form & physical shareholders.

 (I)  The equity shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

 (ii)  Click on “Shareholders” module. 
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        For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form

  PAN    Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

        Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant 
are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact 
Company/RTA.

  Dividend Bank   Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded   
Details or    in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

  Date of birth  If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction 
(v). 

 (vii)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 (viii)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required 
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also 
used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

 (ix)  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice. 

 (x)  Click on the EVSN for the relevant PIONEER INVESTCORP  LIMITED on which you choose to vote. 

 (xi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and 
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

 (xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 (xiii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote. 

 (xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

 (xv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

 (xvi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification 
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

 (iii)  Now enter your User ID 

  a.  For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

  b.  For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

  c.  Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

 (iv)  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 (v) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

 (vi) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 
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 (xvii)  Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Voting

  • Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log 
on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

  • A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

  • After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

  • The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

  • A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of 
the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

  • Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to 
vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; investor.relations@pinc.co.in, if they 
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify 
the same. 

 (xviii)  If you have any queries or issues regarding attending Annual General Meeting & e-Voting from the e-Voting 
System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at 
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact 
Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-23058738) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-
23058542).

 (xix)  The Board of Directors has appointed Shri. Aspi Bhesania proprietor of Aspi Bhesania & Associates, Company 
Secretary in Whole Time Practice (ICSI membership number: 6119 C.P. no.9657) as the scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The results declared along with the 
Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the Company's website www.pinc.co.in and and on the website of CDSL 
and communicated to the Stock Exchange. 

 (xx)  The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during 
the Meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting before the Meeting and make, not later 
than 48 hours of conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour 
or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.  

 (xxi) The Results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website 
www.pinc.co.in and on the website of CDSL and communicated to the BSE Limited where the shares of the 
Company are listed. The results shall also be displayed on the Notice Board at the Registered Office of the 
Company. 

 (xxii)  Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions forming part of the AGM Notice shall be 
deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM i.e. 29th September, 2021

  Please note the important dates

CUT OFF DATE FOR EVOTING

EVOTING START

EVOTING END

AGM DATE

EVENT DATE TIME

Wednesday, 22/09/2021 -

Sunday, 26/09/2021 09.00 A.M. IST

Tuesday, 28/09/2021

Wednesday, 29/09/2021

05.00 P.M. IST

04.30 P.M. IST
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III.  INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM:

 1.  The procedure for E-voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-
voting.

 2.  Only those Members, who are present in the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on 
the Resolutions through Remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through E-voting system available during the AGM.

 3.  Members who have voted through Remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the AGM.

IV. PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

 1.  For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

 2.  For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) 

 3.  For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

  If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

  All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, 
Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to  
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call 022-23058542/43.

 Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 

 i) Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on 
to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 ii) A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 iii) After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

  iv) The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval 
of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

 v) A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 vi) Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; investor.relations@pinc.co.in, if they have voted 
from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Registered Office : 
1218, Maker Chambers V, 
Nariman Point, 
Mumbai – 400 021.
Date: 13th August, 2021.
Place:  Mumbai.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Pioneer Investcorp Limited

Amit Chandra
Company secretary
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out all material facts 
relating to special business mentioned in the Notice:

Item No. 2

 Mr. Shailesh Pravin Dalal (Din: 03187574), who was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent – Non-
executive) of the Company w.e.f. December 22nd, 2020 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act'), and who holds office up to the date of this Annual 
General Meeting of the Company or the last date on which the Annual General Meeting should have been held, 
whichever is earlier and is eligible for appointment. In terms of Section 160 of the Act, the Company has received a 
notice in writing from a Member signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Shailesh Pravin Dalal (Din: 
03187574) for the office of Director. Mr. Dalal has furnished consent/declarations for his appointment as required 
under the Act and the rules made there under.

 Mr. Dalal is a graduate with immense and varied enterpreunial experience spanning over 40 years. Mr. Dalal has 
since set up his own business of Logistic solutions, and brings his rich and varied experience that will be contribute 
in the future of PINC group.

 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee ('N&RC') had assessed the profile of Mr. Dalal and having found him to 
be 'Fit and Proper', recommended his appointment to the Board of Directors. In terms of Sections 149, 152, 160 read 
with Schedule IV of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company, basis the recommendation of the N&RC, have 
reviewed the profile of Mr. Dalal and the declarations that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both 
under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Board is of opinion that he 
fulfils the criteria of independence. 

 In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Dalal meets the fit and proper criteria and is a person of integrity, and has the 
necessary knowledge, experience and expertise for being appointed as an Independent Director. Considering his 
vast expertise and knowledge as well as vast corporate contact, it would be in the interest of the Company that Mr. 
Dalal be appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company. 

 Mr. Dalal's appointment is in compliance with the provisions of applicable statutory Act, Rules and Regulations. (For 
detailed experience statement, please refer the enclosed profile).

 Your Directors, therefore, recommends the appointment of Mr. Shailesh Pravin Dalal (Din: 03187574)as an 
Independent  non-executive Director of the Company, for a period of five (5) years, not liable to retire by rotation, as 
set forth in Item No. 2 of this Notice. 

 Save and except Mr. Dalal and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above Resolution.

 Additional information on Directors being appointed/re-appointed as required under Regulation 36(3) the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in the order of the items 
mentioned in the Notice:
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Particulars (Name) 

Director Identification Number

Age

Date of Birth

Date of first Appointment on Board

Qualification

Experience/Expertise

Terms and Conditions of Appointment or 
re-appointed along with remuneration

The last drawn remuneration

Shareholding in the Company

Relationship with Other Directors, Manager and other 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

The Number of Meetings of the Board attended 
during the year

Other Directorships

Memberships/ Chairmanship of Committees

Mr. Shailesh Pravin Dalal

03187574

66

02/12/1954

22/12/2020

Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com)

40 years / Logistic business

Independent  non-executive Director of the 
Company, for a period of five (5) years, not 
liable to retire by rotation

Nil

Nil

Nil

2

Nil

Committee Membership: One

Committee Chairmanship: Nil

 THE STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDARD- II ON GENERAL MEETING AND 
SEBI LODR REGULATIONS ARE AS UNDER:

Item No. 3

 Mr. Tushya Deepak Jatia (DIN 02228722), who was appointed as an Additional Director (Non - Independent and 
Non-executive) of the Company w.e.f. December 22nd, 2020 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act'), and who holds office up to the date of this Annual 
General Meeting of the Company or the last date on which the Annual General Meeting should have been held, 
whichever is earlier and is eligible for appointment. In terms of Section 160 of the Act, the Company has received a 
notice in writing from a Member signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Tushya Deepak Jatia (DIN 
02228722) for the office of Director. Mr. Jatia has furnished consent/declarations for his appointment as required 
under the Act and the Rules made there under.

 Mr. Jatia is qualified in Masters in Finance & Investment from Nottingham University, U.K. with experience of over 15 
years in the field of Business operations and Development. 

  The Nomination & Remuneration Committee ('N&RC') had assessed the profile of Mr. Jatia and having found him to be 
'Fit and Proper', recommended his appointment to the Board of Directors. In terms of Sections 152, 160 of the Act, the 
Board of Directors of the Company, basis the recommendation of the N&RC, have reviewed the profile of Mr. Jatia and 
the Board is of opinion that he fulfils the criteria of “Fit and Proper' person to be inducted on the Board of the 
Company. 

 In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Jatia meets the fit and proper criteria and is a person of integrity, and has the 
necessary knowledge, experience and expertise for being appointed as a Non-Independent and Non-executive 
Director. 
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 Mr. Jatia's appointment is in compliance with the provisions of applicable statutory Act, Rules and Regulations. (For 
detailed experience statement, please refer the enclosed profile).

 Your Directors, therefore, recommends the appointment of Mr. Jatia (DIN: 02228722) as a Non-Independent and 
non-executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, as set forth in Item No. 3 of this Notice. 

 Save and except Mr. Jatia and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above Resolution.

 Additional information on Directors being appointed/re-appointed as required under Regulation 36(3) the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in the order of the items 
mentioned in the Notice:

 THE STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDARD- II ON GENERAL MEETING AND 
SEBI LODR REGULATIONS ARE AS UNDER:

Particulars (Name) 

Director Identification Number

Age

Date of Birth

Date of first Appointment on Board

Qualification

Experience/Expertise

Terms and Conditions of Appointment or 
re-appointed along with remuneration

The last drawn remuneration

Shareholding in the Company

Relationship with Other Directors, Manager and other 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company

The Number of Meetings of the Board attended 
during the year

Other Directorships

Memberships/ Chairmanship of Committees

Mr. Tushya Deepak Jatia

02228722

35

02/03/1986

22/12/2020

Masters in Finance & Investment from 
Nottingham University, U.K.

15 years / Business operations and 
Development

Non-Independent and non-executive Director 
of the Company, liable to retire by rotation

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

ASI lndustries Ltd. 

ASI Global Limited. Mauritius

ASI Rawasi Rock & Aggregate LLC

Aveline Industries Private Limited

Committee Membership: 2

Committee Chairmanship: Nil
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Item No. 4

 The Board of Directors at its meeting dated 13th August, 2021 approved for Issuance and allotment of Secured or 
Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures including but not limited to subordinated debentures, bonds, 
and/or other debt securities, etc. (“NCD's”) on a private placement basis, aggregating upto Rs.300 Crores in 
tranches and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company may, from time to time, 
determine and consider proper and in the best interest of the Company subject to approval by the Shareholders 
through Special Resolution. 

 As per Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 a company may issue debentures with respect to Section 42 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus & Allotment of Securities) Second Amendment 
Rules, 2018 states that a Company shall not make an offer or invitation to subscribe to securities through private 
placement unless the proposed offer of securities or invitation to subscribe securities has been previously approved 
by the shareholders of the company, by a special resolution, for each of the Offers or Invitations. Third Proviso to Rule 
14(1) states that in case of offer or invitation for non-convertible debentures, where the proposed amount to be raised 
through such offer or invitation exceeds the limits as specified in Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, it shall be sufficient if 
the company passes a previous special resolution only once in a year for all the offers or invitation for such 
debentures during the year. 

 Accordingly, the approval of the members is sought by way of special resolution to issue and allot Secured or 
Unsecured Redeemable non-convertible debentures including but not limited to subordinated debentures, bonds, 
and/or other debt securities, etc. (“NCD's”) on a private placement basis aggregating upto Rs.300 Crores, in such 
tranches and as per the terms to be decided by the Board. 

 The Board therefore commends the passing of the Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying 
Notice for approval by the members of the Company.

 None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise in this Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice.

Registered Office : 
1218, Maker Chambers V, 
Nariman Point, 
Mumbai – 400 021.
Date: 13th August, 2021.
Place:  Mumbai.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Pioneer Investcorp Limited

Amit Chandra
Company secretary
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To The Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present 36th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company along 
with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

 Financial Highlights         2020-2021   2019-2020  

              (Rs. in lakhs)   (Rs. in lakhs)  

  Profit before Tax         254.83    340.07

  Less/(Add): Tax expenses          191.39     122.56

  Net Profit after Tax            63.44         217.51

Economic Review in the midst of COVID-19 pandemic

The outbreak of corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and 
slowdown of economic activity. Operations and revenue have been impacted due to COVID-19.

Overview of Financial Performance 

The ongoing COVID–19 pandemic, resulted in global economic slowdown of business activities not only had impacted 
Company's performance on the business activities, that resulted in Company's weaker revenues from its Investment 
Banking Income both in Equity and Debt segment and also from investment activities in Government Securities / 
Corporate Bonds.                           

The company's standalone income from operations during the Financial Year 2020-21 was decreased to Rs.2567.06 
lakhs as compared to Rs.3511.85 lakhs during previous Financial Year 2019-20, and also consolidated Income from 
operations decreased to Rs.3112.77 lakhs as against Rs.4288.35 lakhs in the previous year. 

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this Report, which affect 
the financial position of the Company.  

Share Capital

During the year under review, the Company's Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital remains unchanged at 
Rs.1229.69 lakhs as at March 31st, 2021.

Dividend 

To strengthen Company's financial position, during this Covid-19 pandemic, the Board of Directors of the Company has 
decided not to recommend dividend for the Financial Year 2020-21.

Transfers to Reserves 

The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Subsidiary Companies 

During the Financial Year 2020-21, there were no changes in status of existing six wholly owned subsidiaries as 
compared to previous year. 

Performance and Financial Position of Subsidiaries

As required under Rule 5 and Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a report on the highlights of 
performance of subsidiaries, and their contribution to the overall performance of the Company is appended as 
“Annexure 4” to the Annual Report. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing 
salient features of financial statement of subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is annexed to the Consolidated Financial Statement 
in the Annual Report.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a consolidated financial statement of the Company along with its 
6(six) Wholly owned Subsidiaries has been prepared in the same form and manner as that of the Company which shall be 
laid before the ensuing AGM along with the laying of the Company's Standalone Financial Statement under Section 
129(2).

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Accounting Standard (AS-21), the Consolidated Financial Statements notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company along with its six 
Wholly owned subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2021 forms part of this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company has resolved not to publish and attach copies of the standalone Annual Audited 
Accounts of all its existing subsidiaries and instead to publish the Consolidated Accounts pursuant to Section 136(1) of 
the Act. Annual Audited Accounts of all its existing subsidiaries can also be obtained by members of the Company by 
making written request to the Company. The Accounts of these subsidiaries are also available for inspection to members 
of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company during the Company's business hours. The Company has 
attached the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report, which includes Accounts of all its six existing 
subsidiaries. 

Directors Responsibility Statement

Your Directors state that: 

 I) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021, the applicable Accounting 
Standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed 
and there are no material departures from the same; 

 ii) They have selected such accounting policies and have applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2021 and of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

 iii) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  and

 iv) The annexed Annual Accounts for the Accounting Year ended on 31st March, 2021, have been prepared on a 
going concern basis; 

 v) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and the such internal financial 
controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

 vi) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

Management Discussion and Analysis 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, is given as a separate statement in the 
Annual Report.

Directors and Key Management Personnel

Directors

S.P. Dalal (DIN 03187574) – Independent Non-Executive  

During the year end under review, Mr. S. P. Dalal (Din: 03187574) was appointed as Additional Director on the Board of 
the Company w.e.f. December 22nd, 2020 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act'), holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company or the last 
date on which the Annual General Meeting should have been held.
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Mr. Dalal is a graduate with immense and varied enterpreunial experience spanning over 40 years. Mr. Dalal has since 
set up his own business of Logistic solutions, and brings his rich and varied experience that will be contribute in the 
future of PINC group.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee ('N&RC') had assessed the profile of Mr. Dalal and having found him to be 'Fit 
and Proper', recommended his appointment to the Board of Directors. In terms of Sections 149, 152, 160 read with 
Schedule IV of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company, basis the recommendation of the N&RC, have reviewed 
the profile of Mr. Dalal and the declarations that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both under sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Board is of opinion that he fulfils the criteria of 
independence. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Dalal meets the fit and proper criteria and is a person of integrity, and has the necessary 
knowledge, experience and expertise for being appointed as an Independent Director. Considering his vast expertise 
and knowledge as well as vast corporate contact, it would be in the interest of the Company that Mr. Dalal be appointed as 
an Independent Director on the Board of the Company.

T. D. Jatia (DIN 02228722) – Non Independent and Non Executive  

During the year end under review, Mr. T. D. Jatia (Din: 02228722) was appointed as Additional Director on the Board of 
the Company w.e.f. December 22nd, 2020 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act'), holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company or the last 
date on which the Annual General Meeting should have been held.

Mr. Jatia is qualified in Masters in Finance & Investment from Nottingham University, U.K. with experience of over 15 years 
in the field of Business operations and Development. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee ('N&RC') had assessed the profile of Mr. Jatia and having found him to be 'Fit 
and Proper', recommended his appointment to the Board of Directors. In terms of Sections 152, 160 of the Act, the Board 
of Directors of the Company, basis the recommendation of the N&RC, have reviewed the profile of Mr. Jatia and the Board 
is of opinion that he fulfils the criteria of “Fit and Proper' person to be inducted on the Board of the Company. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Jatia meets the fit and proper criteria and is a person of integrity, and has the necessary 
knowledge, experience and expertise for being appointed as a Non-Independent and Non-executive Director. 

A.T. Krishnakumar (DIN 00926304) – Independent Non-Executive  

Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar (Din: 01488287). Independent Non-executive Director of the Company was appointed by the 
shareholders of the Company in the AGM of the Company held on 24th September, 2019, as Independent Non–executive 
Director for a period of 5 years, not to liable to retire by rotation.  

A.B. Desai (DIN 01488287) – Independent Non-Executive 

Mr. A. B. Desai (Din: 01488287), Independent Non-executive Director of the Company was appointed by the 
shareholders of the Company in the last AGM of the Company held on 17th December, 2020, as Independent 
Non–executive Director for a period of 5 years, not to liable to retire by rotation. 

K. C. Maniar (DIN 06926167) – Independent Non-Executive 

Mrs. K. C. Maniar (Din: 06926167), Independent Non-executive Director of the Company was appointed by the 
shareholders of the Company in the last AGM of the Company held on 17th December, 2020, as Independent 
Non–executive Director for a period of 5 years, not to liable to retire by rotation. 

Key Management Personnel

During the year end under review, there were no changes in the Key Management Personnel of the Company.

Annual Evaluation

Your Company has laid down Policy in which criteria for performance evaluation of the Directors including Chairperson, 
Managing Director, Board Committees and Board as a whole in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
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SEBI's LODR Regulations. The Policy continued to assist the Company the manner in which formal annual evaluation 
should be made.

Annual Evaluation

Your Company has laid down Policy in which criteria for performance evaluation of the Directors including Chairperson, 
Managing Director, Board Committees and Board as a whole in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
SEBI's LODR Regulations. The Policy continued to assist the Company the manner in which formal annual evaluation 
should be made.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is all about maintaining a valuable relationship and trust with all the shareholders. We consider 
shareholders as partners in our success and remain committed to maximising shareholders' value. Corporate 
Governance is about maximizing shareholders' value legally, ethically and sustainably. As part of the Company's efforts 
towards better corporate practice and transparency, a separate report on Corporate Governance compliances is 
included in the Annual Report.

Contracts and Arrangement with Related Parties

The Company's major related party transactions are generally with its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries. All the contracts / 
arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in its ordinary 
course of business and on an arm's length basis. There were no materially significant transactions with related parties 
including promoters, directors, key managerial personnel, subsidiaries or relatives of the Directors during the financial 
year which could lead to a potential conflict with the interest between the company and these parties. The details of the 
transactions with related parties, if any, were placed before the Audit Committee from time to time. There were no 
material individual transactions with related parties, which were not in the ordinary course of business of the Company, 
nor were there any transactions with related parties, which were not on arm's length basis. Accordingly the disclosure in 
Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for the year under review. Suitable disclosure as required by the 
Accounting Standards (AS-18) has been made in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Prior omnibus approval for normal day to day transactions is also obtained from the Audit Committee for the related party 
transactions which are repetitive in nature as well as for the business transactions which cannot be foreseen and 
accordingly the required disclosures are made to the Committee for their approval.

The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the 
Board may be accessed on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in. Your Directors draw attention of the members to 
Note no.34 to the financial statement which sets out related party transactions disclosures.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014, your Company has established Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') Committee. The Company's 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy may be accessed on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in

The Company has covered all the activities that are statutory permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules framed there under.

The CSR Committee comprises Mr. A. B. Desai (Chairman), Mrs. K. C. Maniar and Mr. G. M. Gandhi Managing Director, 
and Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar. During the financial year 2020-21, the Company was not required to spend on CSR activities, 
therefore nil information on CSR.

Risk Management Policy

Company's Risk Management Policy continued to guide the Board on risk assessment, management and contributes to 
controls, manage, measure and mitigate the risk faced by the company in the day to day operation. The Risk 
Management policy intends to cover serious concerns that could have risk impact on the operations and performance of 
the business of the Company as well as its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries.  
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Internal Financial Controls

Your Company has implemented adequate procedures and internal controls which provide reasonable assurance 
regarding reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements. Further, the Board also ensures 
regularly that Internal Financial controls are functioning efficiently in the ordinary course of business. 

Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Employee Stock Option Scheme is administered by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board. The 
disclosures required to be made in the Directors' Report in respect of Employees Option Schemes, in terms of the SEBI 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, are available on Company's website at www.pinc.co.in. 

Out of the 13,14,000 Stock Options granted to the Employees of the Company by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, fourth tranche of 25% of granted Stock options has been vested during the year end under review, as per the 
terms and conditions of the grant. Further as on 31st March, 2021, 11,49,000 Stock Options are in force.

Auditors and Auditors Report

As members of the Company are aware that the Company in order to comply with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, relating to mandatory rotation of Statutory Auditors, the Company 
has obtained members approval in the AGM to appoint J. D. Jhaveri & Associates, Chartered Accountant (Firm Reg. no. 
111850W) as the statutory auditors of the Company, to hold office for a period of five consecutive years commencing from 
the Financial Year 2017-18, on a remuneration that may be determined by the audit committee in consultation with the 
auditors, and that such remuneration may be paid on a progressive billing basis. The Auditors have confirmed that they 
are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company. The requirement for the annual ratification of auditors' 
appointment at the AGM has been omitted pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on May 7, 2018.

The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further 
explanation. The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Secretarial Auditor 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company had appointed Mr. Aspi Bhesania, Practicing 
Company Secretary, (ICSI membership number: 6119 C.P. no.9657) as its Secretarial Auditors to conduct the secretarial 
audit of the Company for the financial year 2020-21. The Company provided all assistance and facilities to the Secretarial 
Auditors for conducting audit. The Report of Secretarial Auditor for the financial year 2020-21 is annexed to this report as 
Annexure 2. There are no observations, reservations or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report.

DISCLOSURES:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Independent Directors namely Mrs. K C. Maniar (Chairperson), Mr. A. B. Desai, Mr. A. 
T. Krishnakumar, Mr. S. P. Dalal and also Managing Director Mr. G. M. Gandhi. All recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee were accepted by the Board during the Financial Year 2020-21.

Vigil Mechanism

In line with the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Companies Act, 2013 and the principles of good governance, 
your Company has devised and implemented a vigil mechanism, in the form of 'Whistle Blower Policy', for the directors 
and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as, may be prescribed. Such a vigil mechanism shall provide 
for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and also make provision for direct 
access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The Policy on vigil mechanism 
and whistle blower policy may be accessed on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in

Meetings of the Board

Five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. For further details on the Board Meeting, please 
refer to separate report on Corporate Governance forming part of Annual Report.
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Declaration from Independent Directors

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet with 
the criteria of independence as per sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and also the criteria of 
independence as mentioned in Regulation 16(1)(b) and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('LODR Regulations').

Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities provided

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are given in the 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Earnings and Expenditures

The Company has no activities involving conservation of Energy and Technology absorption. Further Company's foreign 
exchange earnings and expenditures during the year under review were nil.

Secretarial Standard 

The Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India

Annual Return

The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2021 is available on Company's website at www.pinc.co.in.

Familiarization Programs for Independent Directors

Independent Directors of the Company are provided with required information and clarification to enable them to 
familiarise with the Company's procedures and practices. Details of programs that were undertaken for familiarizing the 
Independent Directors can be accessed on the Company's website at www.pinc.co.in.

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, 
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“the Rules”), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends which remains unclaimed or unpaid 
for seven years from the date of transfer to unpaid account, are required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF 
established by the Central Government. 

Further, according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend have not been claimed or paid to the 
shareholders for seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to Demat Account created by the IEPF 
Authority. 

  a) Dividend

  The Company has transferred to IEPF Account the entire unclaimed Dividends lying with the Company. 
Members wishing to claim dividends, which have remained unclaimed, are requested to correspond with 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) or Company Secretary at the Company's registered office.  

 b) Shares

  Further, those shares in respect of which dividend have not been claimed or paid to the shareholders for seven 
consecutive years or more, were also transferred as per the requirements of IEPF rules, details of which will be 
provided on Company's website www.pinc.co.in.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names of the top ten employees in terms 
of remuneration drawn and names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits 
set out in the said rules forms part of this Report. Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details as required 
under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
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Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report. Having regard to the provisions of the second proviso to Section 136(1) 
of the Act and as advised, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the 
Company. Any member interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company at email id – 
investor.relations@pinc.co.in

The Board of Directors affirms that the remuneration paid to employees of the Company is as per the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

General

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the year under review: 

1.  Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2.  Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3.  Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme   save and except 
ESOS referred to in this Report. 

4.  The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees or by 
trustees for the benefit of employees.

5.  Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or 
commission from any of its subsidiaries.

6.  No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 
concern status and Company's operations in future.

7.  No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

8.  There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

9.  There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

10.  There was no instance of one time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there was no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Report is pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

INTRODUCTION

During this uncertain environment and on-going Covid-19 pandemic, our Company continued to strengthen its core 
business of Investment Banking both Debt and Equity, and Financial Advisory Services by way of providing gamut of 
customized services to its clients in the form of raising capital, debt, formulating capital structure, debt restructuring, 
project finance, and other corporate financial advisory services and further trying to establish its foothold in the area of 
secondary capital market like open offer in Takeovers, Preferential issue, Right issue, Buy-back, Mergers and 
Amalgamation, and valuation assignment.

GLOBAL AND INDIAN ECONOMY

Global economy

The onset of the pandemic and consequent lockdowns significantly impacted the economy in general. The global 
economy contracted by 3.3% in FY 2020-21, as all major economies except China slipped into recession with COVID-19 
pandemic that resulted in lockdowns. Advanced economies decline of 4.7% was steeper than Emerging markets decline 
of 2.2%. Despite the steep global decline in FY 2020-21, global GDP decline was lower than initially feared primarily due 
to unprecedented monetary policy support from global central banks and fiscal stimulus from various governments in 
there countries. 

Indian economy

The Indian economy is estimated to decline by 8% in FY 2020-21. India's economic decline was sharper than other key 
economies due to strict and early lockdowns to control the spread of COVID-19. However, growth has continued to 
recover and was back in positive territory. India saw a V-shaped recovery as most consumption and industrial indicators 
were back in positive growth territory in the Q3 of 2020-21 after being in deep negative in the previous quarters. 

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

As reported last year, the structure of Company's Subsidiaries and nature of their activities remains unchanged during 
the year end under review, which is as follows:

1. Infinity.Com Financial Securities Ltd. – Trading cum Clearing Member of NSE, BSE & Depository Participant - CDSL, 
Trading member in currency Derivatives of MESL-SX;

2. Pioneer Wealth Management Services Ltd.; (Registered Portfolio Manager with SEBI)

3. Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt. Ltd. – a Non Banking Finance Company (Not accepting Public Deposit);

4.  Pioneer Commodity Intermediaries Pvt. Ltd.;

5.  Pioneer Money Management Ltd.; and

6. Pioneer Investment Advisory Services Ltd.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

As mentioned in the Directors' Report, the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic that affected the Global and Indian business 
activities very hard, also effected several Companies performance and our Company being no exception, that resulted in 
decrease in Company's standalone income from operations to Rs.2567.06 lakhs during the FY 2020-21 as compared to 
Rs.3511.85 lakhs during previous FY 2019-20, and also consolidated Income from operations declined to Rs.3112.77 
lakhs as against Rs.4288.35 lakhs during the same period. 
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OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Opportunities

Momentum in Equity market coupled with strong inflow of FDI and equity FII flows, and strong reforms by Government 
would create new opportunities for the existing players like us. Many global MNCs are likely to consider diversifying their 
manufacturing operations from China and India could be a likely beneficiary given the low corporate tax rate, skilled 
population, relatively low wages and a large domestic market. Thus, once the situation stabilizes, India could see 
relatively stronger recovery

Threats

The threat of various variants of COVID-19 may affect global recovery and border tension between India and its 
neighbouring countries and increase of inflation and threat of third wave may hamper economic recoveries and could 
impact the growth of developing countries like India. With the resurgence of Covid-19 cases posing risks to economic 
recovery, leading brokerages have downgraded India's GDP growth projections for the current fiscal year to as low as 
10% on local lockdowns threatening fragile recovery. World Bank has slashed India's GDP forecast for FY 2022 to 8.3% 
from 11.2% predicted earlier, as the second COVID-19 wave hit India hard. Disruption in global supply chain has 
highlighted risk of overdependence on a single country 

OUTLOOK

Global Factors

The global economy is expected to see a rebound in 2021 with the International Monetary Fund (IMF) expecting 6% 
growth, with US stimulus and vaccine optimism leading to further opening up of the economies. The growth recovery is 
likely to be led by the US and China – the US is estimated to grow 6.4% in 2021 and China by 8.4%. Governments and 
Central Banks are expected to maintain supportive policies until the recovery is firmly underway. The strength of recovery 
will depend on vaccine roll-out.

Indian Economy

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI), and the central and state governments provided critical support to the economy during 
the crisis. The RBI maintained loose monetary policy, cutting repo rates by 115 bps during early 2020. To keep funding 
markets easy, the RBI maintained liquidity surplus through various monetary measures.

Segment wise Performance

As mentioned above Covid-19 pandemic effects resulted in decline in Income from operations for Company's Merchant 
banking services, Advisory fees and also in Income from Investments activities in Government Securities/SLR and non-
SLR bonds.

At a consolidated level also, group sees decline in income segments, i.e. decline in Fee Income from Merchant Banking 
and Advisory fees, and Income from trading in Shares and Securities.

Company's Outlook for its business segments

The relief package announced by Government of India due to COVID-19 pandemic, coupled with strong economic 
reforms by Government, as well as FDI and equity FII flows were strong, driving India's forex reserves to an all time high 
of US$580 billion by the end of FY 2020-21, against US$475 billion by the end of FY 2019-20. Further this relief package 
expected to provide domestic players big growth momentum, and your company with its strong entrepreneur leadership, 
coupled with experienced professional human force will capitalize the best of improved market and economic 
conditions. 

Consolidated Financials                                                                             ( Rs. In lakhs)

   Particulars         2020-21 2019-20

   Total Income         3112.78 4288.35 

   Profit After Tax        87.96 311.15   
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RISK AND CONCERN

At a macro level, the risk of geo political tension in India's neighbouring countries, global trade war between developed 
countries, Covid-19 variants, which need careful and prompt responses from world leaders. 

At the Micro level, economic slowdown due to COVID-19, high inflation due to high crude oil prices and risk of third wave 
may put pressure on Indian economy.

Further increase in competition amongst the financial market intermediaries is a concern and can thus impact the 
performance of the company. The company is primarily exposed to interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company's existing internal control policy continues to improve the Company's risk and control environment. The 
existing Policy assists the management through its assessments to monitor adequacy, effectiveness, and adherence to 
internal controls, processes and procedures instituted by the Management and the extant regulations.

DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the year end under review, both Financial as well as operational performance of the Company and the Group as a 
whole, has shown declined as compared to previous year performance due to business activities affected by Covid-19 
pandemic,  resulting in  decrease in income of operations and profit both at standalone and consolidated level.  

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN RESOURCES

During the year under review, there was no major senior management change both at Company and Group level and the 
Company's management team continued to take necessary steps to retain its human resources which resulted in lower 
attrition both at Company and Group level. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company's Corporate Governance principals ensure that the Company's affairs are being managed in a manner, which 
ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all transactions in the widest sense. The objective is to meet 
shareholders' expectations. Good governance practices evolve from the dynamic culture and positive mindset of the 
Company. The following disclosure is pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

1.  Company's philosophy 

 The Company believes that Corporate Governance is all about maintaining a valuable relationship and trust with all 
the concerned parties. The Company considers shareholders as partners in Company's success and remain 
committed to maximizing Company's value, be it Customers, Employees, Investors & Shareholders and Government 
& Regulatory Authorities.  

2.  Board of Directors

 a)  Composition of Board

  During the year under report, and as mentioned in Directors Report, the Board has appointed two more 
Additional Directors in order to comply with SEBI (LODR) Regulations. Mr. S. P. Dalal and Mr. T. D. Jatia, were 
appointed on 22nd December, 2020. 

  At present the Board comprises of Six (6) Directors namely Mr. G. M. Gandhi, Managing Director represents the 
Promoters group and four Independent Non Executive Directors are namely Mr. A. B. Desai, Mrs. K. C. Maniar, 
Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar and Mr. S. P. Dalal. Mr. T. D. Jatia is Non Executive and Non Independent Director.

 b)    Other provisions as to Board and Committees

 (i) Meetings and attendance record of each Director

  During the year under report from 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2021, the Board of Directors held five meetings 
on 30.07.2020, 15.09.2020, 11.11.2020, 11.02.2021, 24.03.2021 and separate meeting of Independent 
Directors on 24.03.2021. 

  Mr. G. M. Gandhi – Managing Director and Mr. A. B. Desai were present in four Board Meetings. Mr. A. T. 
Krishnakumar and Mrs. K. C. Maniar were present in all five Board Meetings, and Mr. S. P. Dalal was present in 
two Board Meetings after his appointment on Board w.e.f. December 22nd, 2020. Mr. T. D. Jatia, was not able 
to attend any meetings, after his appointment on Board w.e.f. December 22nd, 2020. 

  Mr. G. M. Gandhi - Managing Director and Mr. A. B. Desai, Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar and Mrs. K. C. Maniar, all 
Independent Non-executive Director were present in the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
17th December, 2020.

 (ii)   Number of other Directorships or committees in which member/chairperson

       Mr. G. M. Gandhi is a director of 15 other companies, including holding non-executive non-independent 
Directorship in ASI Industries Ltd. a listed Company and he is also a member of seven Board Committees 
(including committees of the Company), Mrs. K.C. Maniar is a director of two other Companies both are listed 
that is Foods and Inns Ltd. and Muller and Phipps (India) Ltd. and she is a member of four Board Committees 
and out of which she is a chairperson of 2 Board Committees of the Company and Mr. A. B. Desai is a director 
of one other private Company and he is a member of four Board Committees of this Company and holding 
chairperson position in one Board Committees of the Company. Mr. S. P. Dalal is not a Director in any other 
Company and he is a Committee member of 1 Board Committee of this Company. Mr. T. D. Jatia, is a Director of 
4 other Companies including Directorship in ASI Industries Ltd. a listed Company and he is holding 
membership in two Board committees.

 (iii)  Inter-se Relationship between Directors

  There is no inter-se relationship between Directors.
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 (iv)  Number of Shares held by Non-executive Independent Directors

       None of the Non-executive Independent Directors hold any shares of the Company.

 (v)   Familiarisation Programme 

  In compliance with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, Independent Directors of the Company are 
provided with required information and clarification to enable them to familiarise with the Company's 
procedures and practices. The details of familiarisation programme covering overall industry & Company's 
business review, financial performance of the Company, statutory and regulatory changes appraised to Non-
executive Independent Directors are uploaded on Company's website under Investor update in the Investor 
Column at www.pinc.co.in  

 (vi)   Matrix setting out the Skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors

      The Directors of the Company are having the required skills, expertise, competences in the field of  Investment 
Banking, Compliance, Legal, Accounting, Finance, Consultancy, Human Resources, Business Compliance, 
and Expertise in various businesses like Broking & Distribution, Wealth Management, Private Equity, 
Institutional Equities,.

 (vii)  This is to confirm that in the opinion of the Board, all the independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time and are independent of the management.

 (viii)  During the year end under review, there were no resignations from the Board of Directors of the Company.     

3.  Audit Committee

 The Audit Committee comprises of Mrs. K. C. Maniar, Chairperson of the Committee, Mr. A. B. Desai, Mr. A. T. 
Krishnakumar, Mr. S. P. Dalal – all are non-executive Independent Directors and Mr. G. M. Gandhi, Managing Director 
of the Company. During the year under report the Audit Committee held four meetings and considered the quarterly, 
half yearly and audited standalone and consolidated accounts of the Company, approved related party transactions, 
and also re-appointment and fixed the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee 
also supervised the Internal Financial Control and procedures relating to Internal Control system. Mr. G. M. Gandhi, 
Managing Director, Mr. A. B. Desai, Mrs. K.C. Maniar and Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar were present in all four committee 
meetings and Mr. S.P. Dalal was present in one Committee Meeting after the date of his appointment w.e.f. 22nd 
December, 2020. 

4.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. A. B. Desai, Chairperson of the Committee, Mr. A. T. 
Krishnakumar and Mrs. K. C. Maniar, all are non-executive Independent Directors of the Company. This Committee is 
constituted mainly to guide the Board in relation to appointment, re-appointment and removal of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and 
provide necessary report to the Board for further evaluation of the Board, to recommend to the Board on 
Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management. The Committee 
has adopted a policy in commensurate with size and requirements of the Company and meets as such frequent 
internals as may be required. During the year end under review, policy adopted by the Committee worked smoothly as 
per the requirement of the Company.     

5.   Remuneration of Directors

 There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions between the non-executive Directors and the Company except 
for payment of sitting fees for the attendance of Board Meeting or Committee thereof. During the year under report, 
the Company has paid to the non-executive Directors sitting fee of Rs.10,000/- after deducting TDS for each meeting 
of the Board or a Committee thereof attended by them. 

 Further during the year end under review the Company has paid remuneration to Mr. G. M. Gandhi, Managing Director 
of the Company as per Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company. 
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 6.  Stakeholders' Grievance Committee

 The Company's Stakeholder Grievance Committee comprises of Mrs. K. C. Maniar, Mr. G. M. Gandhi, Mr. A. B. Desai 
and Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar, non-executive Director is the Chairperson of this Committee. Mr. Amit Chandra, 
Company Secretary of the Company is appointed as Compliance Officer of the Company. During the year end under 
review the Company has resolved all the Investors complaints received and there were no pending complaints at the 
end of the year.

7.  General Body Meetings

 a)  The details of Annual General Meetings held in the last 3 years are as under

   Year   Day, Date and Time    Venue

   2017-2018 Wednesday, 19th September,   Kilachand Conference Room,2nd floor, 

     2018 at 11.30 a.m.     Indian Merchant Chambers, IMC Marg,  

           Churchgate, Mumbai-400020

   2018-2019 Tuesday, 24th September,   Same as above

     2019 at 11.30 a.m.  

   2019-2020 Thursday, 17th December, 2020   1218, Maker Chambers V, 

     at 02.30 p. m. through Audio /   Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021.

     video conferencing 

b)  Special Resolutions/business transacted at the last three Annual General Meeting were as follows. 

   Year   Matter

   2017 - 2018 Nil

   2018 - 2019  To appoint Mr. Athreya Tyagarajan Krishnakumar (DIN: 00926304) as Independent  
Director.

   2019 - 2020 To appoint Mr. Anand Brijendra Desai (Din: 01488287) as Independent Director.

     To re-appoint Mrs. Kamlini Chaitan Maniar (DIN 06926167) as Independent Director.

     To authorise Board of Directors for issuance and allotment of Secured Non-Convertible 
Debentures (“NCD's”) aggregating up to Rs. 300 Crores in such tranches on such 
terms and conditions to be decided by the Board of Directors.

 c)  During the year under review, the Company has not passed any resolution through the process of Postal Ballot.

 d)  As on date, the Company does not have any plans to pass Special Resolution through Postal Ballot. 

8.  Means of communications

 The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results along with Press Release of the said Results of the Company are 
sent to the Stock Exchange immediately after the Board approves the same. Further the Company publishes Press 
Release of the Results as per the statutory format in one National daily English newspaper and one regional language 
newspaper in the city in which the registered office of the Company is located and uploaded the Financial Results and 
Press Release on the Company's Website: www.pinc.co.in. 

9.  General Shareholders information

 a)  The Annual General Meeting of the Company through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) will be held on Wednesday, 29th September, 2021, at 04.30 P.M.,
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 b)   Financial calendar

  Financial Reporting for Quarter I -    Within 45 days from the end of quarter.
  (ending June 30, 2021) 

  Financial Reporting for Quarter II -    Within 45 days from the end of quarter.
  (ending September 30, 2021)  

  Financial Reporting for Quarter III -    Within 45 days from the end of quarter.
  (ending December 31, 2021)  

  Financial Reporting for Quarter IV -    Within 60 days from the end of quarter.
  (ending March 31, 2022)  

 c)  The cut-off date for shareholders who will be eligible for evoting will be Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021.

 d)  The Company's Shares are presently listed on BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 
400023. The Company's Stock code on the BSE is 507864 and the ISIN number is INE746D01014 and the 
Company has paid listing fees for the Financial Year 2021-22 to BSE Limited, the only Exchange where shares 
of the Company are presently listed;

 e)  Share Prices of the Company – High and Low on BSE Limited, for the Financial Year April, 2020 to March, 2021, 
were as follows: 

 

 f)  The name, address and telephone and fax numbers of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company 
are Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited, Office No. A-106/107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, 
Near Safed pool, Andheri Kurla Road, Sakinaka Mumbai - 400072 E-mail: scs_pl@yahoo.co.in Alternate 
Email Id: service@satellitecorporate.com Tel no. 28520461 Fax no. 28520462.

 g)   The Stakeholder Grievance Committee comprises of Mrs. K.C. Maniar, Mr. A. T. Krishnakumar, Mr. G. M. 
Gandhi, and Mr. A. B. Desai. Mr. Amit Chandra, Company Secretary of the Company is appointed as 
Compliance Officer of the Company. During the year end under review the Company has resolved all the 
Investors complaints received and there were no pending complaints at the end of the year.     

 h)   Detailed Shareholding pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2021, was as under:       

( In ` ) 

Month April 

2020

May

2020

 June

2020

 July

2020

 Aug.

2020

 Sept.

2020

Oct.

2020

 Nov.

2020

Dec.

2020

 Jan.

2021

Feb.

2021

March

2021

High

       Low

34.65

23.65

28.00

20.80

30.00

24.20

30.70

22.50

32.40

22.25

37.80

28.30

37.10

28.05

31.95

26.00

32.90

25.60

30.95

26.25

29.50

25.50

38.00

26.00

 

79,68,900 64.80

79,68,900 64.80

 

4,93,260 4.01

A

1

B

1 

2 38,34,748 31.19

Sr. 
No.

No. of Shares 
held  

Percentage of 
Shareholding Category

Promoter’s holding                             

Promoters

Non - Promoters Holding

Banks and Foreign Institutional Portfolio Investors 

Public including Body Corporate

Sub - Total ( A )

 
43,28,008 35.20Sub - Total ( B )

Total (A) + (B) 1,22,96,908 100.00
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 I)  The distribution of Shareholding of Equity Shares as on 31st March, 2021, was as under:

 j)  As on 31st March, 2021, 92.08% of the Company's total paid up Equity Shares were held in demat form with 
NSDL and CDSL; 

 k)  The Company's Registered as well as Corporate office is situated at 1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman Point, 
Mumbai – 400 021, Tel. No.: 022- 6618 6633 / 2202 1171, Fax no.:022-2204 9195, email id for investor's 
relation is: investor.relations@pinc.co.in, and website: www.pinc.co.in.   

 l)   This is to confirm that as on date the Company does not have any outstanding Global Depository Receipts or 
American depository receipts or warrants or any convertible instruments except Esops as disclosed in this 
Annual Report. 

 m) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in Preparation of Financial Statements The Company has adopted Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) with effect from April 1, 2019 and the effective date of such transition is April 01, 
2019, with comparative figures being restated to make them comparable. The financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS notified under 
Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules issued thereunder and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India

 n)  This is to confirm that as on date the Company does not have any debt instruments or any fixed deposit 
programme or any scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds in India or abroad, for which the 
Company has obtained any credit rating. 

10.  Disclosures

   a) Materially Significant related party transactions

  There were related party transactions with the related parties in the ordinary course of business as mentioned 
in Note no.34 of Financial Statements There were no material significant transactions with related parties, 
which are not in the normal course of business. 

 b)  Penalties or strictures

  No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory                 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Sr 
No. 

   

  

  

  

   

   

   

   

Less than 50 

51 to 100

101 to 500

501 to 1,000

1,001 to 5,000

5,001 to 10,000

10,001 to 50,000

50,001 to 1,00,000

1,00,001 to 5,00,000 

5,00,001 to Above 

TOTAL

 

No of 
Equity Shares

898
 

1261
 

1280 

281 

238
 

28
 

36

 7

 9

1

4039

No.of 
Share-

holders 

19478

123419

332710

226102

526980

217486

743157

487845

2100032

7519699

12296908

No.of 
Shares

 

0.16

1.00

2.71

1.84

4.29

1.77

6.04

3.97

17.08

61.15

100.00

Percentage 
of

Shareholding 
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   authority except fine levied by BSE for non – compliance of minimum 6 Directors on the Board as per 
Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, as Company’s name was appeared in the BSE List of TOP 2000 
Companies by Market Capitalisation as on 31.03.2020, that was paid by Company to BSE. 

 c)  Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy 

  The company has adopted Vigil Mechanism and whistle blower policy as per the statutory provisions. During 
the year, none of the Whistle Blowers have been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board.

 d)  Compliance with Mandatory requirements

  During the year end under review, the Company has adhered to all the mandatory requirements of Corporate 
Governance norms as prescribed under schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to the Company.

 e)  Policy for determining material subsidiaries

  The Policy for determining material subsidiary is uploaded on Company's website at www.pinc.co.in, under 
code of conduct and recent updates in the Investor section.

 f)  Policy for dealing with Related Party Transactions

  The Policy for dealing with Related Party transactions is uploaded on Company's website at www.pinc.co.in, 
under code of conduct and recent updates in the Investor section.

 g)  Disclosure on Commodity price Risks and commodity hedging activities   

  The Company does not deal in commodity transactions and commodity hedging activities.

 h)  This is to confirm that the Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement as specified under Regulations 32 (7A) during the year end under review.

 I) Mr. Aspi Bhesania, Practising Company Secretary certified that none of the directors of the Company have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the Company by SEBI or 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

 j)   Total fees paid to J. D. Jhaveri & Associates, Chartered Accountant (Firm Reg. no. 111850W), Statutory Auditors 
on consolidated basis is Rs.714,000/- including GST for the FY 2020-21 for all the services in the listed 
Company and two of its subsidiaries.

 k)  In terms of the amendments made to the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors confirms that during the 
year, it has accepted all recommendations received from its mandatory committees.

 l)  There were no complaints in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, during the year end under review. 

11.  The Company has complied with all the provisions of Corporate Governance Report of sub para (2) to (10) under 
schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to 
the Company.

12.  The Company has complied with all the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II mentioned 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to the 
Company.

13.  The Company has complied with Corporate Governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) 
to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 to the extent applicable to the Company.  
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14.  Managing Director Declaration regarding compliance of Code of conduct

 I hereby confirm that, all the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the 
Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021.   

15.  Certificate from Auditors

 The certificate of Auditors relating to Corporate Governance is annexed hereto. 

       

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE

Auditors' Certificate on Compliance with the Conditions of

Corporate Governance under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

To, 

The Members of Pioneer Investcorp Limited.

Mumbai.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Pioneer Investcorp Limited (“the 
Company”), for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 as stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representation 
made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For J. D. Jhaveri & Associates

                                                                                 Firm Reg. No. 1118502W                                                                

                                                                               Chartered Accountants

Jatin Jhaveri

                                                                 Proprietor

                                                                           M.No.:045072

UDIN:21045072AAAAGI3193

G. M. Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

Mumbai
                                                13th August, 2021.

Mumbai
30th June, 2021.
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Mumbai
30th June, 2021.

16. Disclosure with respect to Demat Suspense Account / unclaimed suspense Account.

 This is to confirm that Company does not have any shares that are in Demat Suspense Account or unclaimed 
suspense Account. 

MD and CFO Certification

 The MD and CFO has issued following compliance certificate pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 of SEBI 
(Listing obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, regarding the Financial Statements for the 
year ended 31st March, 2021.  

     

MD and CFO Certification

To, 

The Board of Directors

Pioneer Investcorp Limited

1.  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Pioneer Investcorp Limited for the year ended 
31st March, 2021 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

 (I)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

 (ii)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2.  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

3.  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of Company's internal control systems pertaining to financial reporting. We have not 
come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls.

4.  We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

 (I)  that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

 (ii)  that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and

 (iii)  that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.  

G. M. Gandhi

                                                                         Managing Director

                                                                      (DIN - 00008057)   

                                                                S. M. Kabra

                                                                               Chief Financial Officer
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 No Disqualification Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Clause 10(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To:

The Members

Pioneer Investcorp Limited

1218, Maker Chambers V, Nariman Point, 

Mumbai - 400 021.

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Pioneer 
Investcorp Limited having CIN L65990MH1984PLC031909 and having registered office at 1218, Maker Chambers V, 
Nariman Point , Mumbai 400021 Maharashtra, India (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by 
the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-
C Clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
financial year ending on 31st March 2021, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other 
Statutory Authority. 

 Sr. No.  Name of Director    DIN  Date of Appointment in the Company

 1   Gaurang Manhar Gandhi   00008057 11.08.1988

 2.   Anand Brijendra Desai   01488287 12.12.2019

 3.   Athreya Tyagarajan Krishnakumar  00926304 23.08.2019

 4.    Kamlini Chaitan Maniar   06926167 22.06.2015

 5.   Tushya Jatia    02228722 22.12.2020

 6.   Shailesh Pravin Dalal   03187574 22.12.2020

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these, based on my verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Aspi Bhesania

Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No. 6119, C P No: 9657 

UDIN : A006119C000548529

Place: Mumbai

Date:  30th June, 2021.
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Policy on Directors Appointment and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

Introduction

In accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
formulated Remuneration Policy (“the policy”).

The objective of the policy is to ensure that Executive Directors and other employees are sufficiently compensated for 
their performance. The Policy seeks to provide criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director.

Criteria for Board Membership

Directors

 The Company shall take into account following points:

 Director must have relevant experience in Finance/ Law/ Management/ Corporate Governance or the other  
disciplines related to company's business. 

 Director should possess the highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and values. 

 Director must be willing to devote sufficient time and energy in carrying out their duties and responsibilities. 

Independent Director

Independent Director is a director who has no direct or indirect material relationship with the Company or any of its 
officers, other than as a director or shareholder of the Company.

Independent Director shall meet all criteria specified in Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulations 
framed under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

Remuneration Policy

Directors

Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall recommend the remuneration, including the commission based on the 
net profits of the Company for the Managing Director and Whole time Director and other Executive Directors from time to 
time. This will be then approved by the Board and shareholders, if required. Prior approval of shareholders will be 
obtained wherever applicable in case of remuneration/Commission to the non-executive directors, if any.

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances (fixed component) and variable pay to 
Managing Director, Whole time Director, Senior Management Personnel. Salary to Managing Director, Executive Director 
if any will be paid within the range approved by the Shareholders. Annual increments effective will be decided from time to 
time, as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and to be approved by the Board.  Within the 
prescribed ceiling, the perquisites package is approved by the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration paid to Executive Directors is determined keeping in view the industry benchmark and the relative 
performance of the Company to the industry performance. Perquisites and retirement benefits are paid according to the 
Company policy as applicable to all employees.

Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for their professional expertise in their individual capacity as 
independent professionals / Business Executives. Independent Non-Executive Directors receive sitting fees for 
attending the meeting of the Board and Board Committees within the Statutory limits prescribed under The Companies 
Act 2013, as amended from time to time.

Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees

The remuneration of employees largely consists of basic salary, perquisites, allowances and performance incentives. 
Perquisites and retirement benefits are paid according to the Company policy, subject to prescribed statutory ceiling.
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The components of the total remuneration vary for different grades and are governed by the industry pattern, qualification 
& experience / merits, performance of each employee. The Company while deciding the remuneration package takes into 
consideration current employment scenario and remuneration package of the industry.

The annual variable pay of managers is linked to the performance of the Company in general and their individual 
performance for the relevant year measured against Company's objectives fixed in the beginning of the year.

The Committee will take into accounts the views and suggestions of Mr. Gaurang Gandhi – Managing Director of the 
Company, who is in charge of day to day affairs of the Company to review the remuneration structure of KMP and other 
employees on a yearly basis, depending upon the factual situation prevailing at that time.
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH  2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Pioneer Investcorp Limited

Maker Chamber V, Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400 021

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Pioneer Investcorp Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in 
a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon. Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the  financial year ended on 31 March 2021 ('Audit Period') complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended on 31 March 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period)

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
('SEBI Act'):-

(a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and 

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on 28 
October 2014;

(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period);
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(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period); and

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Banking ) Regulations, 1992 

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993

 I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India  

(ii) Equity Listing Agreement entered with BSE Ltd. and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above in time except for delay in appointment of 2 more Directors (totaling to 6 Directors) on 
22nd December, 2020 due to Company's name appeared in TOP 2000 list of Companies by Market Capitalisation as on 
31/03/2020 by BSE Ltd. 

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws 
applicable specifically to the Company: 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Underwriting ) Regulations, 1993.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice is given to all directors 
to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting. All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out 
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case 
may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

Aspi Bhesania

Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No. 6119, C P No: 9657 

UDIN : A006119B000496961

Place: Mumbai

Date:  28.6.2021
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ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH  2021 

        

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Pioneer Investcorp Limited

Maker Chamber V, Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400 021

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company.

4.  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

Aspi Bhesania

Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No. 6119, C P No: 9657 

UDIN : A006119C00052517

Place: Mumbai

Date:  28.06.2021
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ANNEXURE 3 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT 

        

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 
RULES, 2014

i) The  ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 
financial year 2020-21 is 3.70 (Previous year 14.21 ); 

ii) Due to ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer 
and Company Secretary during the financial year 2020-21 are Nil ; 

iii) Due to ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the percentage increase in median remuneration of employees as compared to 
the previous year are Nil; 

iv)   41 number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2021;

v)   Due to ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other 
than managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration are Nil;  

vi)  Due to ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the increase in remuneration of managerial personnel in comparison to previous 
year are Nil; and 

vii) It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Managing Director, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other 
employees is as per remuneration policy of the Company. 
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PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To 

The Members of Pioneer Investcorp Ltd.,

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of M/s. Pioneer Investcorp Ltd (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), 
Statement of changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial 
Statements, including a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone 
Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 
March, 2021, its Profit, changes in Equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our Audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our Audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

 Sr  Key Audit Matter
 No.

  1. Measurement of Investments in accordance with Ind 
AS 109 “Financial Instruments”

   On initial recognition, Investments are recognized at 
fair value, in case of Investments which are 
recognized at fair value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the 
transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition 
value of the investments.

  The Company's investments are subsequently 
classified into following categories based the 
objective of its business model to manage the cash 
flows and options available in the standard:  

  • Debt instruments at amortized cost

  • Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair  
value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Auditor's response

Principal Audit Procedures

• Obtained an understanding of Company's business 
model assessedinaccordancewithIndAS109.

• Evaluated the Company's assessment of business 
model.

• Obtained an understanding of the determination of 
the measurement of the investments and tested the 
reasonableness of the significant judgments applied 
by the management.

• Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to 
the measurement and also tested the operating 
effectiveness of the aforesaid controls.

• Obtained valuation certificate of independent valuer 
in respect of fair value investments
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 Sr.  Key Audit Matter
 No.

   • Equity instruments measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income FVTOCI.

  The Company has assessed following two business 
model:

  - Held to collect contractual cash flows

  - Realizing cash flows through the sale of 
investments. The Company makes decisions 
based on the assets' fair values and manages the 
assets to realize those fair values.

  Since valuation of investments at fair value involves 
critical assumptions, significant risk in valuation and 
complexity in assessment of business model, the 
valuation of investments as per Ind AS109 is 
determined to be a key audit matter in our audit of the 
financial statements.   

Auditor's response

• Ensured that the Company has used valuation 
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

 Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosure in 
the standalone financial statements in accordance 
with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the Standalone Financial 
Statements and our Auditors' Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial 
Statements  or our knowledge obtained in the Audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, changes in Equity and Cash Flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. In preparing the Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an Audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the Audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform Audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain Audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the Audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor's Report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our Auditor's Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the Audit and significant Audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our Audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, that:

 a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 b. In our opinion, proper Books of Account as required by law have been kept by the Company in so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

46



PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

 c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 
Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books 
of account.

 d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

 e. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2021 and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

 f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”

 g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

  (i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Ind 
AS financial statements. Refer note 29 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

  (ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

   (iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and  
Protection Fund by the Company.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

Jatin Jhaveri

Proprietor

M.No.: 045072

UDIN: 21045072AAAAGK8771

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone IND-AS 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021, we report that:

(i)  (a)  The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of fixed assets;

 (b)  A substantial portion of these fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable 
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(ii)  As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. The 
intervals at which the inventories are physically verified are, in our opinion, reasonable in relation to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its business. The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no 
material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii)  As informed to us & on the basis of our examination of the books of accounts & other relevant records, The 
Company has granted loans to five  bodies corporate covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act').

  (a)  In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been granted to the 
bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act were not, prima facie, prejudicial 
to the interest of the Company.

 (b)  In the case of the loans granted to the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the 
Act, the borrowers have been regular in the payment of the principal and interest as stipulated. 

 (c)  There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to a body corporate listed in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Act. 

(iv)  In our opinion & according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans given, investments made, 
guarantees and security given by the Company.

(v)   In our opinion & according to the information & explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any 
deposits from the public during the year. Therefore paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi)   According to the information & explanation provided to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, service tax, sales 
tax, value added tax, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable to the Company with 
the appropriate authorities. We are informed that the provisions of Sales Tax, Customs Duty and Excise Duty are 
not applicable to the Company. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in 
arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, details of disputed statutory dues which have not 
been deposited or partially deposited are as follows:

 Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount disputed Period to which the  Forum where 
        (`)  amount relates (F.Y.) dispute is pending

 Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 76,55,100  2010-11  CIT(A) 
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(viii) In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks or 
financial institutions. 

(ix)  The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt 
instruments during the year. The Company has not availed any term loans during the year.

(x)  To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material fraudby the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticedor reported 
during the course of our audit.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company 
and therefore the compliance requirements relevant to a Nidhi Company are not applicable.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures has been made by the Company during the year under review.

(xv)  According to the information & explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him/her as specified under the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1(A) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and 
therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

Jatin Jhaveri

Proprietor

M.No.: 045072

UDIN: 21045072AAAAGK8771

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) referred to in paragraph 2 (f) on Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report.

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to the standalone financial 
statements of Pioneer Investcorp Ltd (“the Company”) as of 31stMarch, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2021, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
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regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

Jatin Jhaveri

Proprietor

M.No.: 045072

UDIN: 21045072AAAAGK8771

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 
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BALANCE  SHEET  AS  AT  31ST MARCH, 2021.

ASSETS 

Financial Assets 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 3  5,318,724 27,353,412 

Bank Balance other than above    

Receivables 4   777,347,893 898,040,703
Loans 5  38,947,854 41,330,790
Investments 6   580,429,830 579,042,798
Inventories 7   794,005,152 12,335,658
Other Financial Assets 8  54,939,106 47,811,823

Total Financial Assets                           “A”  1,605,915,184  2,250,988,559

Non-Financial Assets

Current Tax Assets (Net) 9  — 

— 

7,641,308

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10  8,532,801 11,902,968

Property, Plant and Equipment 11  36,814,708 50,523,581

Other Intangible Assets  — 

— 

Other Non-Financial Assets 13  12,773,723 14,453,492  

Total Non-Financial Assets                   “B”  84,521,349 58,121,232

Total Assets                                    “A” + “B”  1,690,436,533  2,309,109,791

EQUITIES & LIABILITIES 

Financial Liabilites

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 14  1,004,784,694 394,206,961 

Deposits 15 20,000,000 20,000,000  

Other Financial Liabilites 16  20,861,356  25,565,547

     1,045,646,050                                                    “A”  439,772,508 

Non-Fianancial Liabilties

Porvisions 17 
 17,453,716 17,425,988

Other Non-Financial Liabilites
Current Tax Liabilites (Net)

18
19

 
 3,647,025

345,750

 
 3,312,834

   21,446,491                                                    “B”  20,738,822

Total Liabililites                           “I” - “A” + “B”  460,511,330  1,067,092,541   

Equity

Equity Share Capital 20   128,946,972  128,946,972

Other Equity 21  1,113,070,278 1,100,978,231 

   1,242,017,250                                                  “II”   1,229,925,203

Total Equity & Liabilites                     “I” +“II” 1,690,436,533  2,309,109,791

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

       31.03.2021 31.03.2020Note 

      ` `No. 

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

  Jatin Jhaveri
  Proprietor
  M.No.: 045072
  UDIN: 21045072AAAAGK8771
  Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

As per report of even date attached G.M.Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

A.T.Krishnakumar 
Director
(DIN - 00926304)

A.B.Desai
Director
(DIN - 01488287)

Sanjay Kabra
CFO 

A.J.Chandra
Company Secretary 

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 
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Revenue from operations
Fee Income 22  
Income from Trading in Securities 23 
Net Gain/(Loss) on fair value changes 24 
Other Income 25 

Total Income    
 
EXPENSES
Finance Cost 26   
Employee Benefit Expenses 27 
Depreciation and Amortization Cost 11 
Other Expenses 28  

Total Expenses  

 

PROFIT/(LOSS)    BEFORETAX
Tax Expense
Current Tax  
Earlier Years Tax  
Deferred Tax  
PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX    

Other comprehensive income  
I.  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans  

ii.  Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss  

iii. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - 
 

iv. Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss  

Other Comprehensive Income  

Total comprehensive income   

Earning Per Equity Share  

Before Exceptional Items - Basic/Diluted   

Significant accounting policies  1-2 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021.

    Note 

     No. 

34,438,700
 216,285,171
 (136,667)

6,118,615

256,705,819

74,808,615
90,879,454

 9,204,485
 56,329,948

231,222,502

25,483,317 

 (8,653,015)
 (7,116,388) 

 (3,370,167)

6,343,747 

 

 2,197,117

 553,015

 2,998,168

  

 5,748,300

12,092,047 

 

 0.52

47,558,542 
 266,378,803
 29,318,017

7,929,717 

351,185,079 

104,587,761 
133,401,217 

 10,315,955
 68,872,733

317,177,666 

34,007,414 

 (1,837,735)
 (11,560,230) 

 1,141,739

21,751,188  

 

 (149,936) 

 37,735

 751,409

  

 639,209

22,390,397 

 

 1.77 

   31.03.2020 31.03.2021

 ` `

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

  Jatin Jhaveri
  Proprietor
  M.No.: 045072
  UDIN: 21045072AAAAGK8771
  Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

As per report of even date attached G.M.Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

A.T.Krishnakumar 
Director
(DIN - 00926304)

A.B.Desai
Director
(DIN - 01488287)

Sanjay Kabra
CFO 

A.J.Chandra
Company Secretary 

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

     

       

     

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

 Profit before tax  25,483,317  34,007,414

 Adjustments for : 

 Depreciation and amortisation expenses    10,315,9559,204,485

 Finance costs   104,587,76174,808,615

 Fixed Assets written off   1,104,283 — 

 Rent received  (120,000)(120,000) 
 Interest received   (6,695,651)(5,515,826)

 Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets   —   (70,313)

 Profit on Sale of Investments (40,634,115)(571,548)  

 Changes in Other comprehensive Income     639,2095,748,300 
  69,197,442 83,483,713  

 Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes   108,967,030  103,204,856
 
 Changes in working capital:
 Inventories    479,891,719 (781,669,494)
 Trade receivables   (247,138,412) 120,692,811 
 Loans  (40,650,658) 2,382,936 
 Other Current Assets    (24,273,406) (5,447,514)
 Current Liability   (888,755) 383,828 

 Provisions  1,169,319 27,728 
   (663,629,705)  168,109,807

  271,314,663Cash generated from operations  (554,662,675) 

 a.Direct Taxes (Paid)    (2,701,420)(7,782,345)

   268,613,243Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)  (562,445,020)

B Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities
 (249,441) a.Purchase Of Property, plant and equipment  (17,353,298) 
   b.Purchase Of Investments   (49,564,798)—
   c.Sale /Reversal of Fixed Assets   —   70,313
 d.Sale of Investments  121,062,654(815,484) 
 e.Rent received  120,000120,000 
 f.Interest received   6,695,6515,515,826
         

  60,960,209Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B)    4,641,214

C Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities
 a.Borrowings -Net of Repayment   (324,715,468)610,577,733
 b.Interest Paid   (104,587,761)(74,808,615)
    

 Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities ( C)   535,769,118  (429,303,229)

 Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash 
 equivalents (A+B+C)   (22,034,688)  (99,729,777) 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 
 of the year   127,083,189   27,353,412
 Cash acquired on amalgamation  —  — 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   27,353,412                                                5,318,724 

31.03.2021

For the Year

31.03.2020

For the Year
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.
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 Cash and Cash equivalent as per above Comprises of the following  

 Cash and cash equivalent as per Note no. 3   

  

 - cash in hand    658,081 683,304

 - Balances with Banks (on current accounts)   26,695,331     4,635,420

     27,353,412 5,318,724
 Bank overdraft / cash credit (Note 15B)
 Balance as per statement of cash flows   27,353,412 5,318,724

   

 Figures in brackets represent outflows

  Notes :   

 1.  The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard  
(Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

 2. Additon to property , plant and equipment include movements of capital work progress during the year. 

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

  Jatin Jhaveri

  Proprietor

  M.No.: 045072

  UDIN: 21045072AAAAGK8771

  Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

As per report of even date attached G.M.Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

A.T.Krishnakumar 
Director
(DIN - 00926304)

A.B.Desai
Director
(DIN - 01488287)

Sanjay Kabra
CFO 

A.J.Chandra
Company Secretary 

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

   31.03.2020 31.03.2021

 ` `
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PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

NOTE - 1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Pioneer Investcorp Limited ("the Company") is a listed Company having its registered of office at 1218, Maker Chambers 
V, 12th Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021 and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,1956. The 
Company is a SEBI Registered Category I Merchant Banker. The Financial statements are approved for issue by the 
Company's Board of Directors on June 30, 2021

NOTE - 2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.01  Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

  These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards 
("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under 
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured 
at fair values, and on the basis of accounting principle of a going concern in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the 
accounting policy hitherto in use.

  The financial statements have been presented in accordance with schedule III-Division III General Instructions 
for Preparation of financial statements of a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) that is required to comply 
with Ind AS.

2.02  Functional and presentation currency

  Items included in the financial statements of Company are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). Indian rupee is the functional 
currency of the Company.

2.03  Use of estimates

  The preparation of financial statements in conformity of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of financial 
statements, income and expenses during the year. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

  Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption having the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are:

  -  Valuation of financial instruments

  -  Measurement of defined employee benefit obligation

  -  Useful life of property, plant and equipment

  -  Useful life of investment property

  -  Provisions
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2.04  Fair value measurement

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

  The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

  The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

  A fair value measurement of a non financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

  The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

  Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable.

  Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable.

  For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.

  The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value 
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for 
non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

  At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are 
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the 
Management varies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation 
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

  The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external 
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

  For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above.

2.05  Revenue recognition

  Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to 
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services.

  Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with Customers" provides a control-based revenue recognition model and 
provides a five step application approach to be followed for revenue recognition.
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   A)  Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

  B)  Identify the performance obligations;

  C) Determine the transaction price;

  D)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

  E)  Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.

  Revenue from operations

  Sale of Services

  Merchant banking fees

  Revenue from merchant banking fees includes arranger fees, advisory fees, lead manager fees are recognized 
when the Company satisfies performance obligation. Lead manager fees are recognised over a point of time. 
The Company measures its progress towards satisfaction of performance obligation based on output method 
i.e. milestone basis. Revenue from arranger services and advisory services are recognised point in time.

  Brokerage

  Revenue from brokerage is recognised point in time..

  Interest Income

  Under Ind AS 109, Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross 
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as 
measured at fair value through Profit and loss (FVTPL).

  The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed

  a.  As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

  b.  By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instruments in estimating the cash flows

  c.  Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate, transaction costs, and all other premium or discounts.

    Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with the 
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

  Net gain on Fair value changes

  Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss held 
by Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in 
the aggregate, the same is recognised in "Net gains on fair value changes" under revenue from operations and if 
there is a net loss the same is disclosed under "Expenses" in the statement of Profit and Loss.

  Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments 
measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ("FVTOCI") is recognised in net gain\loss on fair 
value changes.

  However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised is presented 
separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  Dividend Income

  Dividend income is recognised

  a.  When the right to receive the payment is established.

  b.  it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and

  c.  the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably
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  Rental Income

  Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis 
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

2.06  Taxes

  The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or equity. In 
which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

  Current tax

  Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet 
date.

  Current income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognized 
outside profit or loss,either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically 
evaluates position taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subjected to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

  Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statementsand the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which 
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and 
assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

2.07  Property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and 
any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on 
foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

  Subsequent Cost

  Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity 
and the cost can be measured reliably.

  Depreciation

  Depreciation is calculated as per the estimated useful life of assets prescribed by the Schedule II to the 
Companies Act 2013.

  Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease period.

  The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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   Class of Assets  Useful life in Years 

   Buildings         60

   Computers         3

   Office Equipment         5

   Furniture and Fixtures      10

   Vehicles          8

   Software          3

  Derecognition

  An item of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

  Upon first time adoption of IND-AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at 
the Previous GAAP carrying amount at its deemed cost on the date of transition to IND-AS i.e. April 01, 2018.

2.08 Intangible assets

  Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortisation and 
impairment loss, if any.

  The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to 
its working condition for the intended use and net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments 
arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

  The Company has elected to continue with the previous GAAP carrying amount of all intangible assets as 
deemed cost at the date of transition i.e. April 01, 2018

  Subsequent expenditure

  Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic bene�ts embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill 
and brands, are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

  Derecognition

  An item of intangible asset and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
the asset is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

  Intangible assets comprising of Software are amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life or 
maximum 3 years, whichever is shorter.

2.09  Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the 
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of 
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.10  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

  Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects 
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

62



PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

  If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that 
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent liability is not recognized in books 
of account but its existence is disclosed in financial statements.

  A contingent assets, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity shall disclose a brief 
description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an 
estimate of their financial effect, measured using the principles set out for provisions in Ind AS 37.

2.11  Impairment of assets

  a)  Financial assets

    The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no 
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The Company applies a 
simplified approach in calculating Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on trade receivables. Therefore, the 
Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime 
ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical 
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 
environment.

    For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 months ECL, 
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are 
measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the 
loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an 
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit or loss.

  b)  Non-financial assets

    The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company 
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

    If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Pro�t and 
Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated 
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

    The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization 
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

2.12  Financial instruments

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

  Financial assets

  Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which 
are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial 
asset.
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  Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at 

   Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial Amortised cost:
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method less impairment, if 
any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

   A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):
classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, except 
interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as “Net gain on fair value changes “ in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

   Financial assets that are held within a business model Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income 
measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period, the Company 
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

  Trade Receivables and Loans:

  Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts 
estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

  Debt Instruments:

  Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
(“FVTOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the entity's 
business model for managing the fnancial assets and (ii) the contractual cash fow characteristics of the 
financial asset.

  (a)  Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to  Measured at amortised cost:
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method less 
impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

  (b)  Financial assets that are held within a Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:
business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual 
cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive 
income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI 
is reclassifed from the equity to “other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  (c)   A financial asset not classifed as either amortised cost or Measured at fair value through profit or loss:
FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such Financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair 
value, except interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as “Net gain on fair value changes “ in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income /dividend income on financial assets measured at FVTPL is 
recognised separately from "net gain on fair value changes” in the statement of profit and loss.

  Equity Instruments:

  All investments in equity instruments other than investments in subsidiary companies classified under financial 
assets are initially measured at fair value , the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure 
the same either at FVTOCI or FVTPL.
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  The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity 
instrument is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such 
instrument at FVTOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVTOCI 
are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

  Derecognition

  The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

  Financial Liabilities:

  Initial recognition and measurement

  Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at 
fair value and in the case of borrowings trade payables and other financial liabilities, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade payables, deposits and other 
financial liabilities.

  Subsequent measurement

  Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings (a) Borrowings:
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) 
and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Pro�t and Loss over the period of the borrowings 
using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of 
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is 
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the 
period of the facility to which it relates.

   These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the (b) Trade and Other Payables:
Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. They are recognised initially at their fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

   They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using (c) Deposits:
the effective interest method

   The Company on case to case basis elects to account for financial guarantee (d) Financial guarantee contracts:
contracts as a financial instruments or insurance contracts, as specified in Ind AS 109 on Financial instruments 
or Ind AS 104 on Insurance contracts . The Company has regarded its financial guarantee contracts as 
insurance contracts. At the end of each reporting period the Company performs liability liquidity test ( i.e. it 
assesses the likelihood of a pay out based on current undiscounted estimates of future cash flows ), and any 
deficiency is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

  Derecognition

  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires.

  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

  The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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  Offsetting of financial instruments

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

2.13  Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries

  Investments in equity instruments including deemed equity instruments of subsidiaries are carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the 
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in 
subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and carrying amounts are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

  Upon first time adoption of IND-AS, the Company has elected to measure all its Investments in equity 
instruments of subsidiaries at the Previous GAAP carrying amount at its deemed cost on the date of transition to 
IND-AS i.e. April 01, 2018.

2.14  Segment Reporting:

  Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various 
performance indicators by business segments.

  Segment Policies:

  The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing 
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to 
each segment on an appropriate basis.

  Segment information:

  Companies whole business is being considered as one segment.

2.15  Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 
deposits, as defined above,as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

2.16  Retirement benefits

  i)   Defined contribution plans (Provident fund)

    In accordance with Indian Law, eligible employees receive benefits from Provident Fund and Labour welfare 
fund which is defined contribution plan. In case of Provident fund, both the employee and employer make 
monthly contributions to the plan, which is administrated by the Government authorities, each equal to the 
specific percentage of employee's basic salary. The Company has no further obligation under the plan 
beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognised as an employee 
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.

  ii)  Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

    In accordance with applicable Indian Law, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement 
plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumsump payment to 
vested employees, at retirement or termination of employment, and amount based on respective last drawn 
salary and the years of employment with the Company. The Company's net obligation in respect of the 
Gratuity Plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that the employees have earned in 
return of their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present 
value. Any unrecognised past service cost and the fair value of plan assets are deducted. The discount rate 
is yield at reporting date on risk free government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of 
the Company's obligation. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
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    unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited 
to the total of any unrecognised past service cost and the present value of the economic benefits available in 
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan.

    The Company recognises all remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/asset directly in other 
comprehensive income and presented within equity.

  iii)  Short term benefits

    Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as a 
related service provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash 
bonus or profit sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount 
as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

  iv)  Compensated absences

    The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The liability in 
respect of unutilized leave balances is provided at the end of year and charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

2.17  Lease

  Company as a Leasee

  The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing 
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the 
lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend 
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to 
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the 
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a 
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to 
exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company 
revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally 
based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with 
similar characteristics.

   Right of use assets

  The Company as a lessee The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. 
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company 
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the 
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less (short-term leases), variable lease and low value leases. For these short-term, variable 
lease and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. 

  Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease 
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be 
exercised. 

  The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. 

  Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of 
the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability 
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  whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sale and the 
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the 
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

  The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with 
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether 
it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

  Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have 
been classified as financing cash flows. 

2.18  Earnings per share

  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is 
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.19  Recent accounting developments 

  Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is 
no such notification which would have been applicable to the Company from 1 April 2021
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Note No.: 3   

Cash & Cash Equivalants      

Cash On Hand   658,081  683,304

Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts 26,695,331  4,535,420 

In Current Accounts —   100,000 

  27,353,412  5,318,724 

Note No.: 4   

Trade Receivables
  

Trade Receivables considered good- unsecured     898,040,703   777,347,893 

  898,040,703   777,347,893 

Note No.: 5   

Loans 
  

  

(A) Loan to Subsidiaries  41,330,790  38,947,854

TOTAL (A) (Gross)  41,330,790  38,947,854

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance —   — 

TOTAL (A) (Net)  41,330,790  38,947,854

(B)

(i) Secured  —  — 

(ii) Unsecured   41,330,790  38,947,854

TOTAL (B) (Gross)  41,330,790  38,947,854

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance —  — 

TOTAL (B) (Net)  41,330,790  38,947,854

(C) Loan in India

(I) Public Sector —  — 

(ii) Others   41,330,790  38,947,854

TOTAL (C) (Gross)  41,330,790  38,947,854

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance —   — 

TOTAL (C) (Net)  41,330,790  38,947,854

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `
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PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

Note No.: 7   
  

Inventories

Shares / Securities / Bonds 12,335,658   794,005,152 

  12,335,658    794,005,152 

Note No.: 8  
  

Other Financial  Assets

Security Deposit       16,491,269       17,326,747 

Advance to employees       30,949,905      30,980,108 

Other Receivables       370,649       6,632,251 

  47,811,823   54,939,106 

Note No.: 9  
  

Current Tax Assets

Advance Tax (Net)       7,641,308         — 

  7,641,308      —

Note No.: 10  
  

Deferred Tax (Assets)

On Account of Depreciation Diff       4,731,340       924,216 

On Account of 43B disallowances       4,385,772       4,392,752 

On Account of Finance Lease Impact       342,977       275,322 

On Account of Fair value impact of financial asset       2,442,879       2,940,511 

  11,902,968    8,532,801 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `
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PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

Note No.: 12   

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS  
 Particulers         Software Total
Gross block (Deemed cost - refer note below)    

As at 1st April, 2019       26,648,094 26,648,094

Addition         —  —

Disposal/ Reversal       26,648,094 26,648,094

As at 31st March, 2020         ——

Addition           ——

Disposal/ Reversal          ——

As at 31st March, 2021        — —

Accumlated Depreciation  

As at 1st April, 2019      25,543,811 25,543,811

Addition         —  —

Disposal/ Reversal       25,543,811  25,543,811 

As at 31st March, 2020         ——

Addition          ——

Disposal/ Reversal          ——

As at 31st March, 2021         — —

Net Block

As at 31st March, 2020       — —

As at 31st March, 2021        — —

Note No.: 13   
  

Other Non Financial  Assets

Balance with Govt. / Statutory Authorities       4,828,661       5,565,514 

Prepaid Expenses       9,624,831       7,208,209 

  14,453,492    12,773,723 

Note No.: 14

Borrowing other than Debt Securities
  

Term Loans             

From Bank       144,318,554       141,269,074  

From Others       119,240,048        121,212,892 

Demand Loans            

From Bank       122,843,136       742,302,727  

From Others       7,805,222       —  

  394,206,960     1,004,784,693 

Secured* 386,401,739   1,004,784,694 

Unsecured 7,805,222   — 

  394,206,961   1,004,784,694 

*Secured Against
(I)  Term loans are secured against Personal Guarantee of Managing Director & mortagage of property owning by company &
     third parties. Vehicle loan are secured by hypothecation of vehicles.

'(ii) Demand Loans are secured against pledge of securities/bonds. The loan is repayable on demand 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

Note No.: 15   

Deposits
  

Lease Rent Deposits         20,000,000     20,000,000

   20,000,000  20,000,000 

Note No.: 16  

Other Financial  Liabilities
  

Expenses Payable        11,064,465      16,194,727

Unclaimed Dividends        —       —

Finance lease liability         14,501,082       4,666,629

   25,565,547   20,861,356

Note No.: 17  

Provisions
  

Provision for Employee Benefits             

Gratuity (refer note - 29)        17,425,988     17,453,716

Others        —        —

   17,425,988   17,453,716

Note No.: 18  

Other Non-Financial Liabilites
  

Duties & Taxes Payable        3,312,834      3,647,025

   3,312,834   3,647,025

Note No.: 19

Current Tax Liabilites

Tax Liabilites        —       345,750

           —       345,750

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

Note No.: 20   

Equity Share Capital
  

Authorised Capital:*
25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each     250,000,000250,000,000
(Previous Year: 25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

   250,000,000  250,000,000

Issued Subscribed & Paid up:

1,22,96,908 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each    122,969,080122,969,080
(Previous Year:  1,22,96,908 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Add :Amount paid up on  Shares Forfeited   5,977,892 5,977,892

Total Issue, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Share Capital   128,946,972 128,946,972

A)  Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars

Equity

No of shares outstanding at 
the beginning of the year

Add: Additional shares issued 
during the year year

No of shares outstanding 
at the end of the year 

12,296,908

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Equity Share Equity Share

No.of Shares Amount

122,969,080 12,296,908 122,969,080

— — — —

12,296,908 122,969,080 12,296,908 122,969,080

No.of Shares Amount

B)  Details of Shareholders holding more than   
5% shares in the Company:

Gaurang M. Gandhi 
78,62,867 (Previous Year 75,19,699) equity shares 
of Rs 10 fully paid        61.15%      63.94% 

C)  Rights attached to equity shares

 The company has only one class of issued equity shares having apar value of Rs 10/- per share.  Each holder of 

equity share entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.

D)  Employee Stock Option Scheme-refer note 40

E)  The company has not issued any bonus shares for consideration other than cash nor there been any buyback of 

shares during the years immediately preceding 31 March 2021

      31.03.2020     31.03.2021

      `     `
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PIONEER INVESTCORP LIMITED

Note No.: 21 

Other Equity   

Sr.  Particular 

No.    
Reserves and Surplus

(I) Capital Reserve           

  Opening and Closing balance  127,447,500   127,447,500

(ii) Capital (Amalgamation) Reserve             

  Opening and Closing balance  119,483,021  119,483,021 

(iii) Securities Premium Account             

  Opening and Closing balance  111,192,453   111,192,453

(iv) Retained Earnings             

  Opening balance  390,873,497  412,624,685

  Add Profit of the Year        21,751,188      6,343,747

  Closing balance  412,624,685   418,968,432

(v) Other Comprehensive Income             

  Opening balance           15,762,813   16,402,022

  Add: Additions During the year              639,2095,748,300

  Closing balance    16,402,02222,150,322

(vi) General Reserve             

  Opening and Closing balance    313,828,550313,828,550

  Total   1,100,978,2311,113,070,278
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Note No.: 22  
  

Fees and Commission

Investment Banking and Advisory Fees       47,558,542       34,438,700 

  47,558,542      34,438,700 

Note No.: 23   

'Income from Trading in Securities
  

Income/(loss) from arbitrage transaction/stock in trade       282,909,677      219,859,574 

Loss From Derivatives  (16,530,874)  (3,574,403)

  266,378,803    216,285,171 

Note No.: 24  

Net Gain on fair value changes
  

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Realised gain        40,704,093      571,548 

Unrealised gain/(loss)       (11,386,075)       (708,215) 

  29,318,017    (136,667) 

Note No.: 25  

Other Income
  

Interest  6,695,651       5,515,826       

Rent        120,000       120,000 

Sundry Liability Written Back      1,114,067   412,477       

Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset         70,313  —     

  7,929,718    6,118,615 

Note No.: 26  

FINANCE COSTS
  

Interest on borrowings       84,952,971       71,949,649 

Finance charges on Lease       1,651,006       (189,262) 

Interest Others       8,808,581       13,810 

Other borrowing cost       9,175,204       3,034,417 

  104,587,761    74,808,615 

Note No.: 27

Employee Benefit Expenses 

Salaries & Bonus   126,932,052   85,668,009

Gratuity   2,393,064   2,707,534

Contribution to Provident Fund   2,945,640    2,084,806

Staff Welfare   1,130,461   419,105 

   133,401,217   90,879,454
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Note No.: 28

Other Expenses 

Rent  2,622,047     1,808,636 

Business Promotion Expenses 7,770,615      1,045,130 

Power and Fuel 710,652   292,899 

Postage,Telex and Telephones 1,673,510    1,437,289  

Directors’ Sitting Fees 280,000        341,500 

Travelling and Conveyance 3,837,855     1,044,592 

Motor Car Expenses 8,991,560     1,245,606   

Legal and Professional Charges 14,004,900     15,743,665 

CSR Expenses 1,350,000       —

Membership & Subscription 4,341,550  5,346,748 

GST/Service Tax Paid 8,022,257    1,848,160 

Bad Debts —     10,675,000 

Auditors' Remuneration:

Audit Fees  300,000    300,000

Tax Audit Fees  50,000    50,000

Miscellaneous Expenses  14,917,786  15,150,723

   68,872,733      56,329,948

Note No.: 29

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Corporate guarantee given to a bank in respect of working 

capital facility, cash credit and term loan facility taken by 

a subsidiary company  40,000,000    40,000,000

In respect of Service Tax Demands    19,573,9817,655,100

    59,573,981  47,655,100

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `
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Note No.: 30

DISAGGREGATED REVENUE INFORMATION

Type of goods or service   

Arranger and Advisory fees  31,088,700   34,438,700 

Brokerage — —      

Total revenue from contracts with the customers  31,088,700  34,438,700 

Geographical markets   

India  31,088,700   34,438,700 

Outside India — —    

Total revenue from contracts with the customers  31,088,700  34,438,700 

Relation with customer   

Non related party  31,088,700  34,438,700 

Related Party — —    

Total revenue from contracts with the customers  31,088,700  34,438,700 

Timing of revenue recognition   

Service transferred over a period of time  — —     

Service transferred over a point of time  31,088,700 34,438,700  

Total revenue from contracts with the customers  31,088,700  34,438,700 

Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of the services. 

NOTE - 31

Earning per share

Profit for the year as per statement of profit and loss (A)   21,751,1886,343,747

Weighted average number of Equity Share outstanding during the year

for basic and diluted earning per share (B)   12,296,90812,296,908

Basic and diluted earnings per share (A/B)   1.770.52

Nominal value of share (Rs)   10.0010.00

The table below represents disaggregation of Company's revenue from contracts with the 
customers. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, 
amount, timing and uncertainty of its revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, 
market and other economic factors.

      31.03.2020    31.03.2021

     `  `
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Note No.: 32

AS PER IND AS 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS",THE DISCLOSURES AS DEFINED ARE GIVEN BELOW:

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan , recognised as expense for the year is as under :

 Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

    2019-20202020-2021

 Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund  2,945,640  2,084,806 

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 
1972. The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

 Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

    2019-20202020-2021

(a) Statement of profit and loss Net employee benefit expense recognised in 

 the employee cost    

 Current service cost  1,378,847 1,403,529  

 Past service cost  — —      

 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  1,178,751 1,139,471  

 (Gain) / losses on settlement   — —   

 Total expense charged to profit and loss account (included in salaries, wages 

 and incentives) (A) 2,557,598 2,543,000   

(b)  Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Opening amount 

 recognised in OCI outside profit and loss account Remeasurement during the 

 period due to :

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions  559,632 691,784

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographical assumptions  156,385 —  

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes  (2,913,130) (541,848)

 Amount recognised in OCI (B)   (2,197,113) 149,936

 Gratuity expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and OCI (A+B) 

(c) Reconciliation of net liability / asset 

 Opening Defined Benefit liability / (assets)  17,575,924 15,142,603

 Expense charged to profit & loss account   2,557,598 2,543,000

 Amount recognised in outside profit and loss account   (2,197,113) 149,936

 Benefit paid  (482,693) (259,615)

   Closing net defined benefit liability / (asset) 17,453,716 17,575,924
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 Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

    2019-20202020-2021

(d) Movement in Benefit obligation and balance sheet    

 Opening Defined Benefit obligation   17,575,924 15,142,603  

 Current service cost   1,378,847 1,403,529   

 Past service cost   — —   

 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation   1,178,751 1,139,471  

 Remeasurement during the period due to :

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in Financial assumptions   559,632 691,784  

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes  (2,913,130) (541,848)  

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographical assumptions 156,385 —    

 Benefits paid  (482,693) (259,615)  

 Closing defined Benefit obligation [liability/(asset)] recognised in 

 balance sheet 17,453,716 17,575,924  

(e)  Net liability is bifurcated as follows :

  Current    2,853,800 6,408,378

 Non-current   14,599,916 11,167,546 

 Net liability

(f)  The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity Benefit obligation for 

 the company's plans are shown below: For 18 Years to 58 Years Mortality 

 pre-retirement

 Discount rate   6.32% 6.80% 

 Salary escalation rate (p.a.)   5.00% 5.00% 

 Employee Attrition Rate  5.00% 5.00% 

 Mortality pre-retirement   Indian Assured Indian Assured

     Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

   (2006-08) (20012-14)

(g)  A quantitative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

  Indian gratuity plan:

 Assumptions -Discount rate

 Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase / (decrease) by)   1%  1%  

 Impact on Defined Benefit obligation -increase of sensitivity level   (1,125,554)  (864,745)

 Impact on Defined Benefit obligation -decrease of sensitivity level   1,295,735  979,048

 Assumptions -Future salary escalations rates

 Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase / (decrease) by)   1%  1%

 Impact on Defined Benefit obligation -increase of sensitivity level   616,580  476,054

 Impact on Defined Benefit obligation -decrease of sensitivity level   (613,249)  (505,717)
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The following payments are expected contributions to the Defined Benefit plant in future years. 

 Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

    2019-20202020-2021

 Within 1-2 year  7,209,128 4,477,402  

 2-3 year  1,868,569  1,077,503 

 3-4 year  745,039  2,608,504 

 5-6 year  777,032  2,394,822 

 6-10 year  4,589,638   4,897,201 

 The average duration of the Defined Benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 8.09 years (March 31,  
2020 - 5.86 years)

NOTE - 33

SEGMENT REPORTING   

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108, the Company operates in a single operating segment i.e. 
"Providing Financial Services" within India. Accordingly, no separate disclosure is required.
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Note No. 34

AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 24 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES, THE DISCLOSURES AS DEFINED ARE 
GIVEN BELOW:

I.  List of related parties and their relationship Subsidiaries

 Infinity.com Financial Securities Ltd.

 Pioneer Commodity Intermediaries Pvt.Ltd.

 Pioneer Money Management Ltd.

 Pioneer Investment Advisory Services Ltd.

 Pioneer Wealth Management Services Ltd.

 Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt. Ltd.

 Key Managerial Personnel 

 Gaurang Manhar Gandhi Managing Director

 Athreya Tyagarajan Krishnakumar Independent Director

 Anand Brijendra Desai Independent Director

 Kamlini Chaitan Maniar Independent Director

 Shailesh Pravin Dalal Independent Director

 Tushya Deepak Jatia Non- Independent Director

 Sanjay Kabra Chief Financial Officer

 Amit Jethalal Chandra Company Secretary

 Relative of Key Managerial Personnel 

 Hemang M Gandhi Brother of Managing Director

 Ketan Gandhi Brother of Managing Director 

 Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control

 Futuristic Impex Pvt. Ltd.

 Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd.

 Sharp Point Motors & Automobiles Pvt. Ltd.

 Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

 Associated Capital Market Management Pvt. Ltd.

 Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt. Ltd.

 L.Gordhandas  & Co. Clearing Agent Pvt. Ltd.

 Festive Multitrade Pvt. Ltd.

 PINC Tech Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
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Note No. 34 Cont…

II  Details of Related Party Transactions are as follows:

Sr   Particulars     31.03.202031.03.2021

No     ` `

(a)   Transactions with Related Parties   

1  Interest Income/ (Expenses)    

  Subsidiaries/stepdown/fellow subsidiaries*  

  Infinity.com Financial Securities Ltd.  130,377 1,471,455   

  'Pioneer Money Management Ltd.  28,778 19,135   

  Pioneer Investment Advisory Services Ltd.  51,253 50,222   

  Pioneer Wealth Management Services Ltd.  127,483 52,205   

  Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt. Ltd.  3,558,468 2,129,303    

  3,896,359    3,722,320  
2  Remuneration    

  Key managerial personnel/relative of key managerial personnel /associates 

  Mr. Gaurang Gandhi  3,600,000 15,350,000   

  Mr. Hemang Gandhi 3,600,000 3,821,600   

  Mr. Ketan Gandhi 6,621,600 6,821,600   

  Sanjay Kabra 4,956,000 6,164,000   

  Amit Chandra  2,516,037 2,865,341  

    35,022,541  21,293,637 
3  Purchase of Government Securities/Bonds    

  Subsidiaries 

     Infinity.com Financial Securities Ltd. — 1,165,811,626  

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control

  Futuristic Impex Pvt. Ltd. 280,003,912 222,915,708    

  Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd.  280,011,781 217,606,788   

  Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt. Ltd. 56,502,144 211,496,882   

    652,019,378  616,517,836 

4  'Sale of Government Securities/Bonds Subsidiaries    

     Infinity.com Financial Securities Ltd. — 1,112,859,624  

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control

  Futuristic Impex Pvt. Ltd. 280,018,656 285,088,142   

  Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd.  280,018,212 280,001,114  

  Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt. Ltd. 56,506,966 285,088,142   

    850,177,398 616,543,834  

5  'Directors Sitting Fees    

  Key managerial personnel/relative of key managerial personnel /associates 

  Athreya Tyagarajan Krishnakumar 120,000 30,000    

  Anand Brijendra Desai 101,500 110,000   

  Kamlini Chaitan Maniar 120,000 60,000   

    280,000 341,500  
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Sr   Particulars     31.03.202031.03.2021

No     ` `

6  Rent Received    

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control 

  Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd.  120,000 120,000 

7  Rent Paid    

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control 

  Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd.  120,000 120,000 

8  Reimbursement of Expenses    

  Subsidiaries

  Infinity.com Financial Securities Ltd. 392,734 269,110 

   Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control 

  Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd.  3,056,514 1,524,394 

9  Loans & Advances -Given    

  Subsidiaries 

  Infinity.com Financial Securities Ltd.  290,217,127 279,178,000   

  'Pioneer Money Management Ltd.  26,570 120,900   

  Pioneer Investment Advisory Services Ltd.  20,025 25,020   

  Pioneer Wealth Management Services Ltd.  1,506,590 1,287,260   

  Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt. Ltd.  504,058,974 39,638,208   

  795,829,286     320,249,388 

10  Loans & Advances- Repayment    

  Subsidiaries 

  Infinity.com Financial Securities Ltd.  290,217,127 279,178,000   

  Pioneer Wealth Management Services Ltd.  170,000 296,000   

  Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt. Ltd.  510,250,000 3,847,050   

     283,321,050 800,637,127  

11  Collateral Guarantees given    

  Subsidiaries

  Infinity.com Financial Securities Ltd. 40,000,000 40,000,000 

12  Personal Gaurantee     

  Key managerial personnel/relative of key managerial personnel /associates

  Gaurang Manhar Gandhi 1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000 
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III.      As ofBalances with related parties: As of

      31.03.2020 31.03.2021     

  Balance Receivables

  'Loan to Subsidiaries 

  Pioneer Money Management Ltd.   345,383 290,035  

  Pioneer Investment Advisory Services Ltd.   676,652 605,374 

  Pioneer Wealth Management Services Ltd.   2,507,538 1,043,465  

  Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt. Ltd.   35,287,903 37,920,461 

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control

  Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd.  279,083,002 279,196,566  

  Futuristics Impex Pvt Ltd   285,372,897 285,088,142 

  Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt. Ltd.  40,043,087 285,088,142  

      

  Deposits

  Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd.  (20,000,000) (20,000,000)  

  Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd.  22,500,000 22,500,000     

Note:Transaction amount is excluding taxes,wherever applicable.

*  Key managerial remuneration related to retirement benets (i.e.Gratuity ) are recognised under Employee benets 
expenses in statement of profit and loss along with other employees gratuity costs of the Company based on the 
actuarial valuation carried out by Independent Actuary.

NOTE - 35

AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 116 "LEASES",THE DISCLOSURES AS DEFINED ARE GIVEN BELOW:

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities of non-cancellable 
contractual commitments as on an undiscounted basis.

Sr. Particular  As On       As On

    31.03.2020   31.03.2021

a)  Not later than one year      3,492,000 6,861,000 

b)  Later than one year but not later than five year      1,319,000 9,824,306 

c)  Later than five years  —  40,000  

NOTE -36

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Risk Management

The risk management policies of the Company are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.
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The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as of March 31, 2020 were as follows 

Particulars
At Amortised

Cost
At Fair value through

proft and loss
At Fair value
through OCI

Total Carrying 
Value

Financials Assets 

a. Cash and cash equivalents 

b. Bank Balances other than above 

c. Receivables 

d. Loans 

e. Investments 

f.  Inventories

5,318,724 5,318,724

777,347,893

19,507,843

777,347,893

—

—

43,015,870

794,005,152

4,369,870 19,138,157

19,138,157

794,005,152

g. Other financial assets 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

a. Trade Payables 

b. Debt Securities

c. Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

d. Other financial liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities 

54,939,106

857,113,566

—

—

54,939,106

1,674,626,745798,375,022

1,004,784,694

20,861,356

1,025,646,049

1,004,784,694

20,861,356

1,025,646,049

Particulars
At Amortised

Cost
At Fair value through

proft and loss
At Fair value
through OCI

Total Carrying 
Value

Financials Assets 

a. Cash and cash equivalents 

b. Bank Balances other than above 

c. Receivables 

d. Loans 

e. Investments 

f.  Inventories

27,353,416 27,353,416

898,040,703

16,139,989

898,040,703

—

——

41,628,838

12,335,658

4,405,733 21,083,116

21,083,116

12,335,658

g. Other financial assets 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

a. Trade Payables 

b. Debt Securities

c. Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

d. Other financial liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities 

47,811,823

989,345,931

—

—

47,811,823

1,027,170,43816,741,391

394,206,961 394,206,961

25,565,547 25,565,547

419,772,508 419,772,508— —

— 

— 

— 

The Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management 
framework. In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk, 
Liquidity risk and Market risk.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as of March 31, 2021 were as follows

—

—

—

—

— — 

— 

— 

— 

— — 

— — 

— — 

— 

— — 

— — — 

— — — 

— — 

— —

— — 

— — 

— — 

— — 

— 

— — 

— — — 

— — 

— — 
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NOTE -37

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as 
equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, 
deposits, investments and derivative financial instruments.

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.

The Company has interest rate risk exposure mainly from changes in rate of interest on borrowing. The following table 
analyse the breakdown of the nancial assets and liabilities by type of interest rate: 

Particulars 31.03.2021 01.04.2020

Financial assets

Interest bearing

- Fixed interest rate

Loans

Inventory

- Floating interest rate

Loans

Total

Financial Liabilities

Interest bearing

- Fixed interest rate

Borrowings

Borrowings (Vehicle loans)

- Floating interest rate

Borrowings (Term loans)

Borrowings (Repayable on demand)

Total

12,335,658

41,330,790

53,666,448

263,558,603262,481,967

130,648,357742,302,727

394,206,9601,004,784,694

—

—

—

—

—

—

794,005,152

38,947,854

832,953,006

——

——

—

—

—

—

—

—
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NOTE -38

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from 
operations. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral 
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of 
liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a 
robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including debt and overdraft from banks at 
an optimised cost. The Company's maximum exposure to liquidity risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 
31, 2021, March 31, 2020 is the carrying amounts. The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates 
of the financial liabilities. The Company's major financial liabilities include term loans with maturity prole ranging 
between 0 to 5 years and short term borrowings are generally payable within one year. The other payables are with short-
term durations. The following table analysis undiscounted financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities:

Particulars On demand Less than
3 months

As at 31st March 2021

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Deposits

Other financial liabilities

Total

742,302,727

—

—

—

742,302,727

—

—

—

757,717

757,717

—

—

20,000,000

18,588,413

38,588,413

—

—

—

1,515,226

1,515,226

—

—

—

—

—

742,302,727

—

20,000,000

20,861,356

783,164,082

As at 31st March 2020

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Deposits

Other financial liabilities

Total

130,648,358

—

—

—

130,648,358

4,337,061

—

—

1,334,631

5,671,692

13,207,855

—

20,000,000

15,284,037

48,491,892

72,570,487

—

—

8,898,165

81,468,652

173,443,199

—

—

48,714

173,491,913

—

394,206,960

25,565,547

20,000,000

439,772,507

3 to12 
months

1 to 5 
years

>5 years Total
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Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital 
management is to maximise the shareholder value. The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will continue as 
going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders. The Company manages its capital structure and makes 
adjustment in light of changes in business condition. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net 
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The Company includes 
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, 
excluding discontinued operations.

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Deposits

Other financial liabilities

Less: cash and cash equivalents 

Net debt (A)

Equity share capital 

Other equity 

Total member's capital (B) 

Capital and net debt (C=A+B) 

Gearing ratio (%) (A/C) 

(27,353,412)

25,565,547

20,000,000

394,206,960

412,419,096

1,642,344,2982,019,862,609

1,229,925,203

1,100,978,231

128,946,972

1,242,017,250

1,113,070,278

128,946,972

25.11%38.51%

——

(5,318,724)

20,861,356

20,000,000

742,302,727

777,845,359

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that 
it meets financial covenants attached to the borrowings that define capital structure requirements.Breaches in meeting 
the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call borrowings.There have been no breaches in the 
financial covenants of any borrowings in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the aforesaid financial 
period. 
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The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 
March 31, 2020

NOTE -39

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 
March 31, 2021

Particulars

Investments in hybrid instruments FVTPL

Equity instruments FVTPL

Equity instruments FVTOCI

Level III

19,138,157

Level I

19,138,157

4,369,870

19,507,843

4,369,870

Level II

19,507,843

As At
31/03/2021

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using

Particulars

Investments in hybrid instruments FVTPL

Equity instruments FVTPL

Equity instruments FVTOCI

Level III

16,139,989

Level I

16,139,989

4,405,733

21,083,116

4,405,733

Level II

21,083,116

As At
31/03/2020

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using

Description of techniques and valuation inputs used for Level II hierarchy are under:

Asset Class

Investments in hybrid instruments FVTPL

Equity instruments FVTOCI Level III

Level II

Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques and inputs

Future cash fows are discounted using a discount
rate arrived at by adding the spread provided by 
FIMMDA or other approved agencies and annualised
government security yield provided by regulatory 
authorities

Unquoted equity investments - NAV of the latest 
audited financials of the company available in 
public domain.

— —

—

——

— —

—

——
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Note 40

ESOP

Particulars    2020-21 2019-20

      ESOP 2007ESOP 2007 

Options in force at the begining of the year   1,154,000    1,154,000 

Add:Options granted during the year   —   —

Add:Forfeited/lapsed options reissued   —      —

Less:Options forfeited/lapsed   —        5,000

Less: Options Exercised during the year   —     —

Options in force at the end of the year 1,149,000      1,154,000       

Vested Options outstanding-opening    577,000    865,500

Add: Options vested during the year   288,500      288,500

Less: Options Exercised during the year   —     —

Less: Vested Options Lapsed    —       5,000

Vested Options outstanding-closing   865,500   1,149,000

Note No: 41

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company spent Rs NIL (previous year Rs 13,50,000) as per section 135 of the 

Companies Act 2013 in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility.

Note No: 42

There was no impairment loss on the Fixed assets on the basis of review carried out by the management in accordance 

with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)- 36 Impairment of Assets.

Note No: 43

Balances of certain trade receivables, trade payables are subject to confirmation/reconciliation, if any. The management 

does not expect any material difference affecting the financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments.

Note No: 44

The Company has not received any intimation from 'suppliers' regarding their status under the Micro,Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Note No: 45

In the opinion of the Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge adequate provisions has been made in the 

accounts for all known liabilities and the current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary 

course of business.
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Note No: 46

As assessed by the management, Impact of Covid 19 on the financial statements of the Company is likely to be modest 

and for short term. Management does not foresee any medium to long term risk in company‘s ability to continue as going 

concern. 

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

  Jatin Jhaveri

  Proprietor

  M.No.: 045072

  UDIN: 21045072AAAAGK8771 

  Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

 Signature  to Notes 1 to 46     G.M.Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

A.T.Krishnakumar 
Director
(DIN - 00926304)

A.B.Desai
Director
(DIN - 01488287)

Sanjay Kabra
CFO 

A.J.Chandra
Company Secretary 

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To 

The Members of Pioneer Investcorp Ltd.,

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Opinion

We have audited the accompany in consolidated financial statements of M/s. Pioneer Investcorp Ltd (“the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and 
notes to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “ the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated profit, 
consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs).Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and informing our opinion there on, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicate din our report.

 Sr   Key Audit Matter
 No.

 1. Measurement of Investments in accordance with Ind 
AS 109 “Financial Instruments”

   On initial recognition, Investments are recognized at 
fair value, in case of Investments which are 
recognised at fair value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the 
transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition 
value of the investments.

  The Group's investments are subsequently classified

Auditor's response

Principal Audit Procedures

• Obtained an understanding of Group's business 
model assessed in accordance with Ind AS 109.

• Evaluated the Group's assessment of business 
model.

• Obtained an understanding of the determination of 
the measurement of the investments and tested the 
reasonableness of the significant judgments applied 
by the management.
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 Sr. Key Audit Matter
 No.

   into following categories based the objective of its 
business model to manage the cash flows and 
options available in the standard:

  • Debt instruments at amortised cost

  • Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair 
value through profit or loss(FVTPL)

  • Equity instruments measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income FVTOCI.

  The Group has assessed following two business 
model:

  - Held to collect contractual cash flows

  - Realising cash flows through the sale of 
investments. The Group makes decisions based 
on the assets' fair values and manages the assets 
to realize those fair values.

  Since valuation of investments at fair value involves 
critical assumptions, significant risk in valuation and 
complexity in assessment of business model, the 
valuation of investments as per Ind AS 109 is 
determined to be a key audit matter in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Auditor's response

 
• Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to 

the measurement and also tested the operating 
effectiveness of the aforesaid controls.

• Obtained valuation certificate of independent valuer 
in respect of fair value investments

• Ensured that the Group has used valuation 
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

• Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosure in 
the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with the applicable financial reporting framework.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report and Corporate Governance Report but 
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report there on.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)of the Act with respect 
to preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in 
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safe guarding the assets of the Group and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 
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adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group is responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Group.

Auditors' Responsibility for the audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the under lying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are in adequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the under lying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the 
direction, super vision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
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 the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safe guards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Other Matters

 We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of 
Rs.14,55,48,239/- as at March 31,2021, total revenues of Rs 6,28,135/- and net cash flows amounting to 
Rs.(53,215) for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial 
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and 
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 
in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far 
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 
the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

 a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

 b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of 
the other auditors.

 c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

 d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

 e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors 
of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, incorporated in 
India is disqualified as on March31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)of the Act.

 f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”.

 g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended:
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  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid or provided to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provision of Section 197 of the Act.

 h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014,in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

  (i) The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements. Refer note 29 to the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements;

  (ii) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts; and

  (iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Group.

 For J. D. Jhaveri & Associates
 Chartered Accountants
 Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

 Jatin Jhaveri
 Proprietor
 M.No.: 045072
 UDIN: 210045072AAAAAGJ9631

 Mumbai
 30th June 2021
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the M/s. Pioneer Investcorp Ltd (“the Holding 
Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which is 
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies are responsible for establishing 
& maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the 
ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds & 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, & the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI 
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of 
their reports referred to in the Other Matters Paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the respective Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and based on the 
consideration of reporting of other auditors as mentioned in "Other Matter" paragraph, the holding Company and its 
subsidiary companies, which are in corporate in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143 (3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it related to its subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India, 
is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

For J. D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

Jatin Jhaveri
Proprietor
M.No.: 045072
UDIN: 210045072AAAAAGJ9631

Mumbai
30th June 2021



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE  SHEET  AS  AT  31ST MARCH, 2021.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

ASSETS 

Financial Assets 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 3 

3 

54,927,871
52,663,527

 
 Bank Balance other than above   

Receivables 4 1,188,419,957
Loans 
Investments 5 161,815,651 
Inventories 6 794,005,152
Other Financial Assets 7 81,686,775

Total Financial Assets                      “A”  2,333,518,933

Non-Financial Assets

Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 794,485

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9 35,851,709

Property, Plant and Equipment 10 46,415,570 

Other Intangible Assets 11 518,548 

Other Non-Financial Assets 12 15,241,236

Total Non-Financial Assets              “B”  98,821,548

Total Assets                               “A” + “B”   2,432,340,481

EQUITIES & LIABILITIES 

Financial Liabilites

Trade Payable

Deposits 

Debt Securities

15 20,000,000 

—

24,074,280

Other Financial Liabilites 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

16

14

25,514,403

1,011,257,451

 

 

    1,080,846,134                                                    “A”   

Other Non-Financial Liabilites 18 4,344,517
Current Tax Liabilites 19 468,007 

  33,242,418                                                   “B”  

Total Liabililites                      “I” - “A” + “B”   1,114,088,552

Equity

Equity Share Capital 20 128,946,972

Other Equity 21 1,189,304,957 

  1,318,251,929                                                  “II”   

Total Equity & Liabilites               “I” +“II”  2,432,340,481

       31.03.2021 31.03.2020Note 

      ` `No. 

 
 

77,734,971
49,451,501 

  1,324,073,513
 ——
  159,390,972
  12,335,658
 71,693,047

1,694,679,662

 8,724,874

 39,500,175

 62,034,919

689,548

 15,775,349

126,724,865

1,821,404,527

20,000,000  

—

—

30,571,185

 

 

30,144,648

404,214,551

 484,930,384

 4,607,670

28,886,357

 

 33,494,027

518,424,411

  128,946,972

 1,174,033,144

 1,302,980,116

1,821,404,527 

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises

13

 
total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises & small enterprises

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

  Jatin Jhaveri
  Proprietor
  M.No.: 045072
  UDIN: 210045072AAAAAGJ9631
  Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

As per report of even date attached G.M.Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

A.T.Krishnakumar 
Director
(DIN - 00926304)

A.B.Desai
Director
(DIN - 01488287)

Sanjay Kabra
CFO 

A.J.Chandra
Company Secretary 
Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 
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Non-Fianancial Liabilties
Porvisions 17 28,429,894



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021.

 
Revenue from operations
Fee Income 22  55,037,487 64,150,087
Income from Trading in Securities 23   249,357,602 330,101,098
Net Gain/(Loss) on fair value changes 24   (153,732) 29,091,498
Other Income 25 7,036,341 5,492,541

Total Income    311,277,697 428,835,224
 
EXPENSES
Finance Cost 26   84,716,871 106,106,209
Employee Benefit Expenses 27 116,878,764 173,666,652
Depreciation and Amortization Cost 10 & 11   11,749,406 12,415,343
Other Expenses 28     69,967,464 86,780,004

Total Expenses  283,312,505 378,968,208

 

PROFIT/(LOSS)    27,965,192 49,867,016BEFORETAX   
Tax Expense
Current Tax    (8,374,744) (1,665,312)
Earlier Years Tax    (7,146,096) (11,492,865) 
Deferred Tax    (3,648,465) (5,593,457)

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX  8,795,887 31,115,544    

Other comprehensive income    
I. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans    3,867,245 602,697

ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss    553,015 (151,688)

iii. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - 
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans    2,055,673 751,409

iv. Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss      

Other Comprehensive Income    6,475,933 1,202,419

0.72

Total comprehensive income 15,271,820 32,317,963     

Earning Per Equity Share   

Basic/Diluted earning per share     

Significant accounting policies  1-2 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

      Note 31.03.2021

      

2.53

 31.03.2020 

` No. `

As per report of even date attached 

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

  Jatin Jhaveri

  Proprietor

  M.No.: 045072

  UDIN: 210045072AAAAAGJ9631

  Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

G.M.Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

A.T.Krishnakumar 
Director
(DIN - 00926304)

A.B.Desai
Director
(DIN - 01488287)

Sanjay Kabra
CFO 

A.J.Chandra
Company Secretary 

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2021.
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A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

 Profit before tax  27,965,192  49,867,016

 Adjustments for : 

 Depreciation and amortisation expenses    12,415,34311,749,406

 Finance costs   106,106,20984,716,871

 Fixed Assets written off   1,104,283 — 

 Rent received  (120,000)(189,959) 
 Interest received   (4,258,474)(6,320,126)

 Profit on Sale of Investments   (40,634,115)  (571,548)

 Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipments —(36,109)  

 Changes in Other comprehensive Income     1,202,4193,935,794 
  75,815,665 93,284,329  

 Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes   121,249,521  125,682,681
 
 Changes in working capital:
 Inventories    479,891,719 (781,669,494)
 Trade receivables   (263,890,933) 135,653,556 
 Other Current Assets    (23,565,939) (9,459,616)
 Current Liability   (3,513,148) (6,636,480) 

 Provisions  10,454,448 (456,463) 
   (662,568,497)  199,376,146

  325,058,828Cash generated from operations  (541,318,974) 

 a.Direct Taxes (Paid)    (2,476,000)(7,122,444)

   322,582,828Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)  (548,441,418)

B Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities
 (747,091) a.Purchase Of Property, plant and equipment  (17,832,817) 
   b.Sale Of Property, plant and equipment   —70,313
    c.Purchase of Investments   (49,564,798)   —
 d.Sale of Investments  123,302,916687,008 
 e.Rent received  120,000189,959 
 f.Interest received   4,258,4746,320,126
         

  60,283,775Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B)    6,520,315

C Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities
 a.Borrowings -Net of Repayment   (326,677,873)607,042,900
 b.Interest Paid   (106,106,209)(84,716,871)
    

 Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities ( C)   (522,326,030)  (432,784,082)

 Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash 
 equivalents (A+B+C)   (19,595,074)  (49,917,479 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 
 of the year   177,103,951   127,186,472
 Cash acquired on amalgamation  —  — 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   127,186,472                                                107,591,398 

31.03.2021

For the Year

31.03.2020

For the Year
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 Cash and Cash equivalent as per above Comprises of the following  

 Cash and cash equivalent as per Note no. 11   

  

 - cash in hand    1,079,602 1,381,714

 - Balances with Banks (on current accounts)   76,655,369     53,546,157

     77,734,971  54,927,871
 Other Bank Balances    49,451,50152,663,527
 Balance as per statement of cash flows   127,186,472 107,591,398

   

 Figures in brackets represent outflows

  Notes :   

 1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard  
(Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

 2. Additon to property , plant and equipment include movements of capital work progress during the year. 

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

  Jatin Jhaveri

  Proprietor

  M.No.: 045072

  UDIN: 210045072AAAAAGJ9631

  Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

As per report of even date attached G.M.Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

A.T.Krishnakumar 
Director
(DIN - 00926304)

A.B.Desai
Director
(DIN - 01488287)

Sanjay Kabra
CFO 

A.J.Chandra
Company Secretary 

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

   31.03.2020 31.03.2021

 ` `

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2021.
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NOTE - 1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Pioneer Investcorp Limited ("the Company") is a listed Company having its registered office at 1218, Maker Chambers V, 
12th Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021 and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,1956. The 
Company is a SEBI Registered Category I Merchant Banker. The Financial statements are approved for issue by the 
Company's Board of Directors on June 30, 2021 

NOTE - 2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.01  Basis of Consolidation

a)  Basis of Preparation

  The individual Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 
2021 of Pioneer Investcorp Limited ('the Company') and its subsidiaries ('companies and / or subsidiaries'), 
collectively referred to as 'Group', have been consolidated as per principles of consolidation enunciated in 
Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) 110- 'Consolidated Financial Statements' issued by the Council of The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under 
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured 
at fair values, and on the basis of accounting principle of a going concern in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the 
accounting policy hitherto in use

b)  Principles of Preparation

  The financial statements of the group companies of Pioneer Investcorp Limited are prepared according to 
uniform accounting policies, in accordance lndian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS"). The effects of all inter-
group transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

  The financial statements have been presented in accordance with schedule III-Division III General Instructions 
for Preparation of financial statements of a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) that is required to comply 
with Ind AS.

c)  List of Subsidiaries Consolidated

  The individual Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 
2021 of following subsidiaries are included in consolidation.

  I.  Pioneer Wealth Management Services Limited 

  II.  Pioneer Money Management Limited 

  III. Pioneer Investment Advisory Services Limited 

  IV. Pioneer Commodity Intermediaries Private Limited 

  V.  Infinity.com Financial Securities Limited 

  VI. Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt. Ltd.
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2.02  Functional and presentation currency

  Items included in the financial statements of Company are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). Indian rupee is the functional 
currency of the Company.

2.03  Use of estimates

  The preparation of financial statements in conformity of Ind AS requires management to make judgments,  
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the date of financial 
statements, income and expenses during the year. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

  Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption having the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are:

  -   Valuation of financial instruments

  -   Measurement of defined employee benefit obligation

  -   Useful life of property, plant and equipment

  -   Useful life of investment property

  -   Provisions

2.04  Fair value measurement

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

  The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

  The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

  A fair value measurement of a non financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

  The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

  Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable.

  Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable.
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  For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.

  The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value 
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for 
non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

  At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are 
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the 
Management varies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation 
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

  The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external 
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

  For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above.

2.05  Revenue recognition

  Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to 
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services.

  Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with Customers" provides a control-based revenue recognition model and 
provides a five step application approach to be followed for revenue recognition

  A)  Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

  B)  Identify the performance obligations;

  C) Determine the transaction price;

  D)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

  E)  Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.

  Revenue from operations

  Sale of Services

  Merchant banking fees

  Revenue from merchant banking fees includes arranger fees, advisory fees, lead manager fees are recognized 
when the Company satisfies performance obligation. Lead manager fees are recognised over a point of time. 
The Company measures its progress towards satisfaction of performance obligation based on output method 
i.e. milestone basis. Revenue from arranger services and advisory services are recognised point in time.

  Brokerage

  Revenue from brokerage is recognised point in time

  Interest Income

  Under Ind AS 109, Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross 
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as 
measured at fair value through Profit and loss (FVTPL).

  The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed

  a.  As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
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  b.  By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instruments in estimating the cash flows

  c.  Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate, transaction costs, and all other premium or discounts.

    Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with the 
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

  Net gain on Fair value changes

  Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss held  
by Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in 
the aggregate, the same is recognised in "Net gains on fair value changes" under revenue from operations and if 
there is a net loss the same is disclosed under "Expenses" in the statement of Profit and Loss.

  Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments 
measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ("FVTOCI") is recognised in net gain\loss on fair 
value changes.

  However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised is presented 
separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  Dividend income

  Dividend income is recognized 

  a.  When the right to receive the payment is established.

  b.  it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and

  c.  the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably

  Rental Income

  Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis 
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

2.06 Taxes  

  The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or equity. 
In which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

  Current tax

  Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet 
date.

  Current income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognized 
outside profit or loss,either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically 
evaluates position taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subjected to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

  Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statementsand the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which 
the liability is settled or the asset realised , based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and 
assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that suffcient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.07  Property, plant and equipment

  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and 
any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on 
foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets

  Subsequent Cost

  Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity 
and the cost can be measured reliably.

  Depreciation

  Depreciation is calculated as per the estimated useful life of assets prescribed by the Schedule II to the 
Companies Act 2013.

  Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease period.

  The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

  Estimated useful life of the assets is as under:

   Class of Assets   Useful life in Years

   Buildings         60

   Computers         3

   Office Equipment         5

   Furniture and Fixtures      10

   Vehicles          8

   Software          3

  Derecognition

  An item of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

  Upon first time adoption of IND-AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at 
the Previous GAAP carrying amount at its deemed cost on the date of transition to IND-AS i.e. April 01, 2018.

2.08  Intangible assets

  An item of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

  Upon first time adoption of IND-AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at 
the Previous GAAP carrying amount at its deemed cost on the date of transition to IND-AS i.e. April 01, 2018.

  Subsequent expenditure

  Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic bene�ts embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill 
and brands, are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

  Derecognition

  An item of intangible asset and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
the asset is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

112



  Intangible assets comprising of Software are amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life or 
maximum 3 years, whichever is shorter.

2.09  Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the 
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of 
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.10  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

  Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

  If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that 
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent liability is not recognized in books 
of account but its existence is disclosed in financial statements.

  A contingent assets, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity shall disclose a brief 
description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an 
estimate of their financial effect, measured using the principles set out for provisions in Ind AS 37.

2.11  Impairment of assets

  a)  Financial assets

    The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no 
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The Company applies a 
simplified approach in calculating Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on trade receivables. Therefore, the 
Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime 
ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical 
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 
environment.

    For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 months ECL, 
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are 
measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the 
loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an 
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit or loss.

  b)  Non-financial assets

    The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company 
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

    If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated 
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  recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

  The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or 
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

2.12  Financial instruments

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

  Financial assets

  Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which 
are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial 
asset.

  Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at

  Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial Amortised cost: 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method less impairment, if 
any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is 
classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, except 
interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as “Net gain on fair value changes “ in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income 
measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period, the Company 
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

  Trade Receivables and Loans:

  Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts 
estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

  Debt Instruments:

  Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
(“FVTOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) till derecognition on the basis of (i) the entity's 
business model for managing the fnancial assets and (ii) the contractual cash fow characteristics of the 
financial asset.

   Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to (a)  Measured at amortised cost:
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method less 
impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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   Financial assets that are held within a (b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:
business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual 
cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive 
income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI 
is reclassifed from the equity to “other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

    A financial asset not classifed as either amortised cost or (c) Measured at fair value through profit or loss:
FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair 
value, except interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as “Net gain on fair value changes “ in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income /dividend income on financial assets measured at FVTPL 
is recognised separately from "net gain on fair value changes” in the statement of profit and loss.

  Equity Instruments:

  All investments in equity instruments other than investments in subsidiary companies classified under financial 
assets are initially measured at fair value , the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure 
the same either at FVTOCI or FVTPL.

  The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity 
instrument is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such 
instrument at FVTOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVTOCI 
are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

  Derecognition

  The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

  Financial Liabilities:

  Initial recognition and measurement

  Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at 
fair value and in the case of borrowings trade payables and other financial liabilities, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade payables, deposits and other 
financial liabilities.

  Subsequent measurement

  Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  (a)   Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings Borrowings:
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Pro�t and Loss over the period of the 
borrowings using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as 
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. 
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is 
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity 
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

  (b)  These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Trade and Other Payables:
Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. They are recognised initially at their fair value 
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
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   They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using (c)  Deposits:
the effective interest method

  (d)   The Company on case to case basis elects to account for financial guarantee Financial guarantee contracts:
contracts as a financial instruments or insurance contracts, as specified in Ind AS 109 on Financial 
instruments or Ind AS 104 on Insurance contracts . The Company has regarded its financial guarantee 
contracts as insurance contracts. At the end of each reporting period the Company performs liability liquidity 
test ( i.e. it assesses the likelihood of a pay out based on current undiscounted estimates of future cash 
flows ), and any deficiency is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

  Derecognition

  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires.

  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

  The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  Offsetting of financial instruments

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.13 Segment Reporting:  

  Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various 
performance indicators by business segments.

  Segment Policies:

  The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing 
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to 
each segment on an appropriate basis.

  Segment information:

  Companies whole business is being considered as one segment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents 

  Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 
deposits, as defined above,as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

2.15 Retirement benefits  

  i)   Defined contribution plans (Provident fund)

    In accordance with Indian Law, eligible employees receive benefits from Provident Fund and Labour welfare 
fund which is defined contribution plan. In case of Provident fund, both the employee and employer make 
monthly contributions to the plan, which is administrated by the Government authorities, each equal to the 
specific percentage of employee's basic salary. The Company has no further obligation under the plan 
beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognised as an employee 
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. 
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  ii)  Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

    In accordance with applicable Indian Law, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement 
plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumsump payment to 
vested employees, at retirement or termination of employment, and amount based on respective last drawn 
salary and the years of employment with the Company. The Company's net obligation in respect of the 
Gratuity Plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that the employees have earned in 
return of their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present 
value. Any unrecognised past service cost and the fair value of plan assets are deducted. The discount rate 
is yield at reporting date on risk free government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of 
the Company's obligation. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected 
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited 
to the total of any unrecognised past service cost and the present value of the economic benefits available in 
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan.

    The Company recognises all remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/asset directly in other 
comprehensive income and presented within equity.

  iii)  Short term benefits

    Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as a 
related service provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash 
bonus or profit sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount 
as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

  iv)  Compensated absences

    The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The liability in 
respect of unutilized leave balances is provided at the end of year and charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

2.16  Lease

  Company as a Leasee

  The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing 
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the 
lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend 
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to 
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the 
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a 
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to 
exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company 
revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally 
based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with 
similar characteristics.

   Right of use assets

  The Company as a lessee The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. 
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company 
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the 
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.  

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less (short-term leases), variable lease and low value leases. For these short-term, variable 
lease and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. 



118

  Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease 
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be 
exercised. 

  The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. 

  Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of 
the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sale and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

  The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with 
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether 
it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

  Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have 
been classified as financing cash flows. 

2.17  Earnings per share

  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is 
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.18  Recent accounting developments 

  Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is 
no such notification which would have been applicable to the Company from 1 April 2021.



Note No.: 3   

Cash & Cash Equivalants      

Cash On Hand    1,079,602 1,381,714

Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts  76,655,369  53,446,157

In Fixed Deposits  — 100,000

   77,734,971 54,827,871

(b) Bank Blances other than Cash & Cash Equivalants

 Fixed Deposits with Banks*   49,451,50152,663,527

     49,451,50152,663,527

* Held as Margin Money against Bank Guarantees with Exchanges.

Note No.: 4   

Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables considered good- unsecured   1,324,073,5131,188,419,957  

   1,324,073,513 1,188,419,957  

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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Note No.: 5 Investments   

          

  Investments   31.03.2021  31.03.2020   31.03.2021 31.03.2020  

A At Fair Value through Other Comprehesive Income

i In Other Companies  (Unquoted) 

 Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt Ltd. 500,000 500,000     19,138,157 16,139,989   

 Pioneer Power Infra Limited      9,121,200 9,121,200    127,651,561 127,711,055    

 Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt Ltd.    970,000 970,000    10,491,052 10,953,681  

  Total            157,280,770 154,804,725

B At Fair Value through Profit & Loss

I In Equity Shares (Quoted)      

 Arihant Foundations & Housing Ltd.   243,155 243,155    4,109,320 3,695,956    

 Adani Green Energy Ltd.      — 2,000  —  307,300    

 Starlog Enterprises Ltd.        21,183 21,183    260,551 402,477   

 Divine Multimedia (India) Ltd.       176,602 176,602   70,641 70,641  

 Praxis Home Retail Ltd.      95 95    3,420 5,824  

 Indiabulls Ventures Ltd.         1,000 1,000   90,950 104,050 

  Total                    4,534,881 4,586,247

               161,815,651 159,390,972

No of Shares                               Amount
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Note No.: 6   
  

Inventories

Shares / Securities / Bonds          12,335,658  794,005,152

   12,335,658   794,005,152

Note No.: 7  
  

Other Financial  Assets

Security Deposit        34,994,725      39,382,747

Advance to employees        33,067,889      34,069,982

Other Receivables        3,630,433      8,234,046

   71,693,047  81,686,775

Note No.: 8  
  

Current Tax Assets

Advance Tax (Net)        8,724,874    794,485  

   8,724,874   794,485  

Note No.: 9  
  

Deferred Tax (Assets)

On Account of Depreciation Diff        4,103,336      1,239,314

On Account of 43B disallowances        7,270,190      7,155,181

On Account of Finance Lease Impact        327,639      275,322

On Account of B/f Losses        26,324,734       26,882,257

On Fair value impact of Financial Liablity  1,474,276 299,635

   39,500,175   35,851,709

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Note No.: 11   

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS  

          Software Total

Gross block (Deemed cost - refer note below)

As at 1st April, 2019       27,548,094 27,548,094

Addition        —    —

Disposal/ Reversal       26,648,094  26,648,094

As at 31st March, 2020        900,000 900,000 

Addition         —  —

Disposal/ Reversal        —  —

As at 31st March, 2021        900,000   900,000

Gross block (Deemed cost - refer note below)  

As at 1st April, 2019      25,583,263 25,583,263

Addition        171,000  171,000 

Disposal/ Reversal       25,543,811   25,543,811

As at 31st March, 2020       210,452 210,452

Addition         171,000 171,000

Disposal/ Reversal        —  —

As at 31st March, 2021        381,452 381,452

Net Block

As at 31st March, 2020         689,548 689,548

As at 31st March, 2021        518,548518,548 

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `

Note No.: 12   
  

Other Non Financial  Assets

Balance with Govt. / Statutory Authorities        5,187,792      6,372,628

Prepaid Expenses        10,587,556      8,868,608

   15,775,349   15,241,236

Note No.: 13  
Payables

- Trade Payable           

- Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises  — —

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small enterprises   30,571,185 24,074,280

     30,571,18524,074,280
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Note No.: 14

Borrowing other than Debt Securities
  

Term Loans              

From Bank    154,326,145149,181,417

From Others        119,240,048      121,212,892

Demand Loans             

From Bank         122,843,136    740,863,142

From Others         7,805,222     —

   404,214,551   1,011,257,451

Secured*   396,409,3291,011,257,451

Unsecured   7,805,222—

    404,214,5511,011,257,451

Note No.: 15   
  

Deposits

Lease Rent Deposits       20,000,000  20,000,000

   20,000,000   20,000,000

Note No.: 16    
Other Financial Liabilities

Expenses Payable        14,667,987      20,847,774

Unclaimed Dividends         —     —

Finance lease liability        14,679,520     4,666,629

For Others         797,141    —

   30,144,648   25,514,403

Note No.: 17    
Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits             

Gratuity (refer note - 32)        28,885,730      28,428,800

Others        627     1,094

   28,886,357   28,429,894

Note No.: 18     
Other Non-Financial Liabilites

Duties & Taxes Payable         4,607,670      4,344,517

   4,607,670   4,344,517

*Secured Against

(I) Term loans are secured against Personal Guarantee of Managing 
Director & mortagage of property owning by company & third 
parties. Vehicle loan are secured by hypothecation of vehicles.

(ii) Demand Loans are secured against pledge of securities/bonds.  
The loan is repayable on demand 

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Note No.: 19  

'Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Tax Liabilities        —     468,007

   —   468,007

Note No.: 20   

Equity Share Capital
  

Authorised Capital:*
25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each    250,000,000  250,000,000
(Previous Year: 25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

    250,000,000  250,000,000

Issued Subscribed & Paid up:

1,22,96,908 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each        122,969,080 122,969,080
(Previous Year:  1,22,96,908 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Add :Amount paid up on  Shares Forfeited   5,977,892 5,977,892

Total Issue, Subscribed & Fully Paid up Share Capital   128,946,972 128,946,972

A)  Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting  year

Particulars

Equity

No of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Add: Additional shares issued during the year year

No of shares outstanding at the end of the year 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Equity Share Equity Share

12,296,908 122,969,080 12,296,908 122,969,080

— — — —

12,296,908 122,969,080 12,296,908 122,969,080

No.of Shares Amount No.of Shares Amount

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `

  
B) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Gaurang M. Gandhi 
78,62,867 (Previous Year 75,19,699) equity shares of Rs 10 fully paid        61.15%    63.94% 

C)  Rights attached to equity shares

 The company has only one class of issued equity shares having apar value of Rs 10/- per share.  Each holder of 

equity share entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.

D)  Employee Stock Option Scheme-refer note 40

E)  The company has not issued any bonus shares for consideration other than cash nor there been any buyback of 

shares during the years immediately preceding 31 March 2021

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Note No. 21

Other Equity   

Sr.  Particular 

No.  

  Reserves and Surplus
  

(i) Capital Reserve           

  Opening and Closing balance  135,132,166    135,132,166 

(ii) Capital Redemption Reserve             

  Opening and Closing balance  30,000,000   30,000,000 

(iii) Capital (Amalgamation) Reserve             

  Opening and Closing balance  119,483,021    119,483,021

(iv) Securities Premium Account             

  Opening and Closing balance  111,192,453    111,192,453

(v) Retained Earnings             

  Opening balance         414,506,439 445,621,983

  Add Profit of the Year        31,115,544      8,795,885

  Closing balance  445,621,983   454,417,868

(vi) Other Comprehensive Income             

  Opening balance         17,572,547    18,774,966

  Add: Additions During the year        1,202,419     6,475,933 

  Closing balance  18,774,966  25,250,899

(vii) General Reserve             

  Opening and Closing balance  313,828,550    313,828,550

  Total  1,174,033,139 1,189,304,957

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `



126

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Note No.: 22  
  

Fees and Commission

Investment Banking and Advisory Fees       50,813,340        34,849,328 

Brokerage Income         13,062,704         19,799,819 

Depository Services        274,043       388,340  

  64,150,087     55,037,487  

Note No.: 23   
  

'Income from Trading in Securities

Income/(loss) from arbitrage transaction/stock in trade       359,292,091   252,932,229 

Loss From Derivatives (29,190,992)    (3,574,628) 

  330,101,098      249,357,602 

Note No.: 24  
  

Net Gain on fair value changes

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value 
through profit or loss      

Realised gain        40,705,890       571,548 

Unrealised gain/(loss)       (11,614,392)        (725,280) 

  29,091,498      (153,732) 

Note No.: 25  
  

Other Income

Interest 4,258,474        6,320,126       

Rent        120,000        189,959  

Sundry Liability Written Back 1,114,067       412,477         

Profit On Sale of Fixed Asset —          70,313        

Misc Income —        43,466        

  5,492,541     7,036,341 

Note No.: 26  
  

Finance Costs

Interest on borrowings       85,896,850       81,439,803  

Interest on debt securities       —  —        

Finance charges on Lease       1,655,609       (189,262) 

Interest Others       8,808,581         13,810 

Other borrowing cost        9,745,168       3,452,520 

  106,106,208 84,716,871 

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Note No.: 27

Employee Benefit Expenses 

Salaries & Bonus   164,544,802   109,241,204

Gratuity   3,092,172   3,893,004

Contribution to Provident Fund   4,169,995    2,797,114

Staff Welfare   1,859,683   947,442

   173,666,652   116,878,764

Note No.: 28

Other Expenses 

Rent  2,626,535     1,944,379 

Business Promotion Expenses 8,943,553      2,353,796 

Power and Fuel 714,132    298,029  

Postage,Telex and Telephones 3,072,181     1,508,975  

Directors’ Sitting Fees 280,000       341,500 

Travelling and Conveyance 4,198,302     2,266,887 

Motor Car Expenses 10,647,180    1,571,298  

Legal and Professional Charges 15,290,885     19,789,599 

CSR Expenses 1,350,000       —

Membership & Subscription 6,624,736   5,390,584 

GST/Service Tax Paid 8,367,649  2,041,268 

Sundry Debit / Credit Balances Written off  5,786,318   —

Bad Debts  —   10,675,000

Auditors' Remuneration:

Audit Fees  653,600    707,600

Tax Audit Fees  50,000  50,000

Miscellaneous Expenses  18,174,933    20,181,486

Prior year Expense  —   847,062

   86,780,004  69,967,464

Note No.: 29

Contingent Liabilities

Corporate guarantee given to a bank in respect of working 

capital facility, cash credit and term loan facility taken by 

a subsidiary company 74,000,000     74,000,000 

In respect of Income Tax Demands   19,573,9817,655,100

In respect of Service Tax Demands    ——

    93,573,981 81,655,100

       31.03.2020    31.03.2021

      `     `

        31.03.2020  31.03.2021

       `   `
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      Previous Year   Current Year

     2019-2020  2020-2021

Note No.: 30

DISAGGREGATED REVENUE INFORMATION

Type of goods or service   

Arranger and Advisory fees  50,813,34034,849,328 

Brokerage  13,062,704   19,799,819

Depository   274,043    388,340

Total revenue from contracts with the customers  63,876,044  54,649,147 

Geographical markets   

India  63,876,044   54,649,147

Outside India — —    

Total revenue from contracts with the customers  63,876,044  54,649,147

Relation with customer   

Non related party  63,876,044   54,649,147

Related Party — —    

Total revenue from contracts with the customers  63,876,044  54,649,147

Timing of revenue recognition   

Service transferred over a period of time  — —     

Service transferred over a point of time  63,876,044  54,649,147 

Total revenue from contracts with the customers  63,876,044  54,649,147

Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of the services. 

NOTE - 31

Earning per share

Profit for the year as per statement of profit and loss (A)   31,115,5448,795,887

Weighted average number of Equity Share outstanding during the year

for basic and diluted earning per share (B)   12,296,90812,296,908

Basic and diluted earnings per share (A/B)   2.530.72

Nominal value of share (Rs)   10.0010.00

The table below represents disaggregation of Company's revenue from contracts with the 
customers. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, 
amount, timing and uncertainty of its revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, 
market and other economic factors. 

      31.03.2020    31.03.2021

     `  `

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Note No.: 32

AS PER IND AS 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS",THE DISCLOSURES AS DEFINED ARE GIVEN BELOW:

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan , recognised as expense for the year is as under :

 Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

    2019-20202020-2021

 Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund  4,169,995 2,797,114

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 
1972. The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

 Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

    2019-20202020-2021

(a) Statement of profit and loss Net employee benefit expense recognised in 

 the employee cost    

 Current service cost  1,378,847 1,793,893  

 Past service cost  — —      

 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  1,178,751 1,973,462  

 (Gain) / losses on settlement   — —   

 Total expense charged to profit and loss account (included in salaries, wages 

 and incentives) (A) 2,557,598    3,767,355

(b)  Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Opening amount 

 recognised in OCI outside profit and loss account Remeasurement during the 

 period due to :

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions  559,632 1,010,861

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographical assumptions  156,385 —  

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes  (2,913,130) (1,613,558)

 (602,697)Amount recognised in OCI (B)   (2,197,113) 

 Gratuity expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and OCI (A+B) 

(c) Reconciliation of net liability / asset 

 Opening Defined Benefit liability / (assets)  29,035,666 26,130,623

 Expense charged to profit & loss account   2,557,598 3,767,355

 Amount recognised in outside profit and loss account   (2,197,113) (602,697)

 Benefit paid  (482,693) (259,615)

   29,035,666Closing net defined benefit liability / (asset) 28,913,458 
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 Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

    2019-20202020-2021

(d) Movement in Benefit obligation and balance sheet    

 Opening Defined Benefit obligation   29,035,666 26,130,623  

 Current service cost   1,378,847 1,793,893   

 Past service cost   — —   

 Interest cost on defined benefit obligation   1,178,751 1,973,462  

 Remeasurement during the period due to :

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in Financial assumptions   559,632 1,010,861  

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes  (2,913,130) (1,613,558)  

 Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographical assumptions  156,385 —     

 Benefits paid  (482,693) (259,615)  

 Closing defined Benefit obligation [liability/(asset)] recognised in 

 balance sheet 28,913,458   29,035,666

(e)  Net liability is bifurcated as follows :

  Current    2,853,800 6,408,378

 Non-current   14,599,916 22,627,288 

 Net liability

(f) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity Benefit obligation for 

 the company's plans are shown below: For 18 Years to 58 Years Mortality 

 pre-retirement

 Discount rate   6.32% 6.80% 

 Salary escalation rate (p.a.)   5.00% 5.00% 

 Employee Attrition Rate  5.00% 5.00% 

 Mortality pre-retirement   Indian Assured Indian Assured

    Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

   (2012-14) (2006-08)

(g)  A quantitative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

  Indian gratuity plan:

 Assumptions -Discount rate

 Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase / (decrease) by)   1%  1%  

 Impact on Defined Benefit obligation -increase of sensitivity level   (12,585,296)  (1,264,469)

 Impact on Defined Benefit obligation -decrease of sensitivity level   (10,164,007)  1,421,905

 Assumptions -Future salary escalations rates

 Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase / (decrease) by)   1%  1%

 Impact on Defined Benefit obligation -increase of sensitivity level   (10,843,162)  860,062

 Impact on Defined Benefit obligation -decrease of sensitivity level   (12,072,991)  (856,301)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021



131

The following payments are expected contributions to the Defined Benefit plant in future years. 

 Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

    2019-20202020-2021

 Within 1-2 year  12,659,640 4,477,402 

 2-3 year  2,262,199  1,077,503 

 3-4 year  2,711,185  2,608,504 

 5-6 year  1,883,039  2,394,822 

 6-10 year  6,960,079   4,897,201 

 The weighted  average duration of the Defined Benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 8.09 years 
(March 31, 2020 - 5.99 years)

NOTE - 33

SEGMENT REPORTING   

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108, the Company operates in a single operating segment i.e. 
"Providing Financial Services" within India. Accordingly, no separate disclosure is required.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Note No. 34

AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 24 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES, THE DISCLOSURES AS DEFINED ARE 
GIVEN BELOW:

I.  List of related parties and their relationship Subsidiaries

  

 Key Managerial Personnel 

 Gaurang Manhar Gandhi Managing Director

 Athreya Tyagarajan Krishnakumar Independent Director

 Anand Brijendra Desai Independent Director

 Kamlini Chaitan Maniar Independent Director

 Tushya Jatia Non-Independent Director

 Shailesh Dalal  Independent Director

 Sanjay Kabra Chief Financial Officer

 Amit Jethalal Chandra Company Secretary

 Relative of Key Managerial Personnel 

 Hemang M Gandhi Brother of Managing Director

 Ketan Gandhi Brother of Managing Director 

 Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control

 Futuristic Impex Pvt. Ltd.

 Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd.

 Sharp Point Motors & Automobiles Pvt. Ltd.

 Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

 Associated Capital Market Management Pvt. Ltd.

 Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt. Ltd.

 L.Gordhandas  & Co. Clearing Agent Pvt. Ltd.

 Festive Multitrade Pvt. Ltd.

 PINC Tech Solution Pvt Ltd.
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Note No. 34 Cont…

II  Details of Related Party Transactions are as follows:

Sr   Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

No     2019-20202020-2021

(a)   Transactions with Related Parties   

1  Remuneration    

  Key managerial personnel/relative of key managerial personnel /associates 

  Mr. Gaurang Gandhi  3,600,000 15,350,000   

  Mr. Hemang Gandhi 3,600,000 3,821,600   

  Mr. Ketan Gandhi 6,621,600 6,821,600   

  Sanjay Kabra 4,956,000 6,164,000   

  Amit Chandra  2,516,037 2,865,341  

  Jai Gandhi (Relative of Director)  1,350,000 16,220,000  

    51,242,541  22,643,637 

2  Purchase of Government Securities/Bonds     

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control

  Futuristic Impex Pvt. Ltd. 413,724,073 309,420,104    

    Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd.  412,031,474 368,508,317 

  Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt. Ltd. 195,537,289 536,169,160   

    1,214,097,581  1,021,292,836 

3  'Sale of Government Securities/Bonds     

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control

  Futuristic Impex Pvt. Ltd. 522,817,603 371,711,423   

  Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 355,024,737 458,371,082   

  Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt. Ltd.  143,520,680 656,635,696  

    1,486,718,201  1,021,363,020 

4  'Directors Sitting Fees    

  Key managerial personnel/relative of key managerial personnel /associates 

  Late C.C. Dalal — 80,000   

  Athreya Tyagarajan Krishnakumar 120,000 30,000    

  Anand Brijendra Desai 101,500 110,000   

  Kamlini Chaitan Maniar 120,000 60,000   

    280,000  341,500 

5  Rent Received    

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control 

  Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd.   120,000 120,000

6  Rent Paid    

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control 

  Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt. Ltd.   120,000 120,000
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Sr   Particulars   Previous YearCurrent Year

No     2019-20202020-2021

7  Reimbursement of Expenses    

   Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel have control 

  Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd.   1,524,394   3,056,514

8  Personal Gaurantee     

  Key managerial personnel/relative of key managerial 

  personnel /associates

  Gaurang Manhar Gandhi  2,000,000,000 1,200,000,000

9  Brokerage Earned    

  Gaurang Gandhi  44,546   77,473

  Ketan Gandhi   74,271  —

 

10  Brokerage on Purchase/Sale of Securities

  Key managerial personnel/relative of key managerial personnel /associates    

  Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt Ltd  1,180 1,180

  Key Managerial Personnel    

  Gaurang Gandhi  — 12,296

  Hemang Gandhi  150  460

  Balances with related parties:   31.03.2021 31.03.2020

  Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel 

  have control

  Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd.   (20,000,000) (20,000,000)

  Futuristic Impex Pvt Ltd  86,784,113   527,737,504

  Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt Ltd  143,549,334   125,483,154

  Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt Ltd  200,325,708 353,404,537

      

  Key Managerial Personnel

  Gaurang Gandhi   295,716315,021

  Hemang Gandhi    115575

Note:Transaction amount is excluding taxes,wherever applicable.

* Key managerial remuneration related to retirement benets (i.e.Gratuity) are recognised under Employee benets 
expenses in statement of prot and loss along with other employees gratuity costs of the Company based on the actuarial 
valuation carried out by Independent Actuary. 
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NOTE - 35

AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD 116 "LEASES",THE DISCLOSURES AS DEFINED ARE GIVEN BELOW:

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities of non-cancellable 
contractual commitments as on an undiscounted basis.

Sr. As On    Particular   As On   

    31.03.2020    31.03.2021

a)  Not later than one year  6,921,000   3,492,000

b)  Later than one year but not later than five year  9,344,306  1,319,000

c)  Later than five years   —  —

NOTE -36

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Risk Management

The risk management policies of the Company are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management 
framework. In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk, 
Liquidity risk and Market risk.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as of March 31, 2021 were as follows



136

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as of March 31, 2020 were as follows

Particulars
At Amortised

Cost
At Fair value through

proft and loss
At Fair value
through OCI

Total Carrying 
Value

Financials Assets 

a. Cash and cash equivalents 

b. Bank Balances other than above 

c. Receivables 

d. Loans 

e. Investments 

f. Other financial assets 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

a. Trade Payables 

b. Debt Securities

c. Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

d. Other financial liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities 

54,927,871 54,927,871

1,188,419,957 1,188,419,957

52,663,527 52,663,527

1,296,011,355

—

—

161,815,651

2,333,518,932

4,534,881

875,691,927 875,691,927

880,226,808

1,011,257,451 1,011,257,451

24,074,280 24,074,280

45,514,403 45,514,403

1,080,846,134 1,080,846,134

Particulars
At Amortised

Cost
At Fair value through

proft and loss
At Fair value
through OCI

Total Carrying 
Value

Financials Assets 

a. Cash and cash equivalents 

b. Bank Balances other than above 

c. Receivables 

d. Loans 

e. Investments 

f. Other financial assets 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

a. Trade Payables 

b. Debt Securities

c. Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

d. Other financial liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities 

77,734,971 77,734,971

49,451,501 49,451,501

1,324,073,513 1,324,073,513

1,451,259,985

—

159,390,972

84,028,705

1,694,679,662

4,586,247 154,804,725

84,028,705

88,614,952 154,804,725

404,214,550 404,214,550

30,571,185 30,571,185

50,144,648 50,144,648

484,930,383 484,930,383

157,280,770

157,280,770

—

—

— —

— 

— — 

— — 

— — 

— 

— — 

— — 

— — — 

— — 

— — 

— —

— — 

— — 

— — — — 

— 

— — 

— — 

— — — 

— — 

— — 

— 

— 
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NOTE -37

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as 
equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, 
deposits, investments and derivative financial instruments.

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.

The Company has interest rate risk exposure mainly from changes in rate of interest on borrowing. The following table 
analyse the breakdown of the nancial assets and liabilities by type of interest rate: 

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Financial assets

Interest bearing

-Fixed interest rate

Loans

Inventory

-Floating interest rate

Loans

Total

Financial Liabilities

Interest bearing

-Fixed interest rate

Borrowings

Borrowings (Vehicle loans)

-Floating interest rate

Borrowings (Term loans)

Borrowings (Repayable on demand)

Total

—

—

—

12,335,658

270,394,309

740,863,142

1,011,257,451

273,566,193

130,648,357

404,214,550

—

—

—

794,005,152

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

—

—

—

—

—

—

——

12,335,658794,005,152
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NOTE -38

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from 
operations. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral 
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of 
liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a 
robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including debt and overdraft from banks at 
an optimised cost. The Company's maximum exposure to liquidity risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 
31, 2021, March 31, 2020 is the carrying amounts. The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates 
of the financial liabilities. The Company's major financial liabilities include term loans with maturity prole ranging 
between 0 to 5 years and short term borrowings are generally payable within one year. The other payables are with short-
term durations. The following table analysis undiscounted financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities:

Particulars On demand Less than
3 months

As at 31st March 2021

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Deposits

Other financial liabilities

Total

740,863,142

24,074,280

—

—

764,937,422

—

—

— — — —

757,717

757,717

20,000,000

23,241,460

43,241,460

—

—

1,515,226

1,515,226

—

—

—

—

740,863,142

24,074,280

20,000,000

25,514,403

810,451,825

As at 31st March 2020

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Deposits

Other financial liabilities

Total

130,648,357

30,520,709

—

1,471,455

162,640,521

4,845,099

50,476 —

—

7,640,878

12,536,453

14,795,064

20,000,000

11,906,998

46,702,062

80,482,829

—

—

8,898,165

89,380,994

173,443,200

—

—

227,152

173,670,352

404,214,549

30,571,185

30,144,648

20,000,000

484,930,382

3 to12 
months

1 to 5 
years

>5 years Total

—
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Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital 
management is to maximise the shareholder value. The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will continue as 
going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders.The Company manages its capital structure and makes 
adjustment in light of changes in business condition. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net 
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio.The Company includes 
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash

equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

Particulars 31.03.202031.03.2021

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Deposits

Other financial liabilities

Less: cash and cash equivalents 

Net debt (A)

Equity share capital 

Other equity 

Total member's capital (B) 

Capital and net debt (C=A+B) 

Gearing ratio (%) (A/C) 

(127,186,472)

30,144,648

20,000,000

30,571,185

404,214,549

357,743,910

1,660,724,0262,021,112,356

1,302,980,116

1,174,033,144

128,946,972

1,318,251,929

1,189,304,957

128,946,972

21.54%34.78%

(107,591,398)

25,514,403

20,000,000

24,074,280

740,863,142

702,860,427

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that 
it meets financial covenants attached to the borrowings that define capital structure requirements.Breaches in meeting 
the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call borrowings.There have been no breaches in the 
financial covenants of any borrowings in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the aforesaid financial 
period. 
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The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 
March 31, 2020

NOTE -39

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 
March 31, 2021

Particulars

Equity instruments FVTPL

Equity instruments FVTOCI

Level III

157,280,770

Level I

157,280,770

4,534,8814,534,881

Level II

As At
31.03.2021

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using

Description of techniques and valuation inputs used for Level II hierarchy are under:

Asset Class

Investments in hybrid instruments FVTPL

Equity instruments FVTOCI Level III

Level II

Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques and inputs

Future cash fows are discounted using a discount
rate arrived at by adding the spread provided by
FIMMDA or other approved agencies and 
annualised government security yield provided by 
regulatory authorities

Unquoted equity investments - NAV of the latest 
audited financials of the company available in 
public domain.

Particulars

Equity instruments FVTPL

Equity instruments FVTOCI

Level IIILevel I

154,804,725 154,804,725

4,586,2474,586,247

Level II

As At
31.03.2020

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using

—

—

—

——

—

—

—
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Note 40

ESOP

Particulars     2019-202020-21

      ESOP 2007ESOP 2007 

Options in force at the begining of the year   1,154,000    1,154,000 

Add:Options granted during the year   —   —

Add:Forfeited/lapsed options reissued   —      —

Less:Options forfeited/lapsed   —        5,000

Less: Options Exercised during the year   —     —

Options in force at the end of the year      1,154,000      1,149,000 

Vested Options outstanding-opening    577,000    865,500

Add: Options vested during the year   288,500      288,500

Less: Options Exercised during the year   —     —

Less: Vested Options Lapsed     —       5,000

Vested Options outstanding-closing   865,500   1,149,000

Note No: 41

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company spent Rs NIL (previous year Rs 13,50,000) as per section 135 of the 

Companies Act 2013 in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility.

Note No: 42

There was no impairment loss on the Fixed assets on the basis of review carried out by the management in accordance 

with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)- 36 Impairment of Assets.

Note No: 43

Balances of certain trade receivables, trade payables are subject to confirmation/reconciliation, if any. The management 

does not expect any material difference affecting the financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments.

Note No: 44

The Company has not received any intimation from 'suppliers' regarding their status under the Micro,Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Note No: 45

In the opinion of the Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge adequate provisions has been made in the 

accounts for all known liabilities and the current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary 

course of business

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
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Note No: 46

As assessed by the management, Impact of Covid 19 on the financial statements of the Company is likely to be modest 

and for short term. Management does not foresee any medium to long term risk in company‘s ability to continue as going 

concern. 

For J.D. Jhaveri & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 111850W

  Jatin Jhaveri

  Proprietor

  M.No.: 045072

  UDIN: 210045072AAAAAGJ9631

  Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 

 Signature  to Notes 1 to 46     G.M.Gandhi
Managing Director
(DIN - 00008057)

A.T.Krishnakumar 
Director
(DIN - 00926304)

A.B.Desai
Director
(DIN - 01488287)

Sanjay Kabra
CFO 

A.J.Chandra
Company Secretary 

Mumbai, 30th June, 2021 
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